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To be the leading round-the-clock air-time properties

provider, delighting the viewers, on the one hand, and

providing value to the advertisers for their time and money,

on the other.

To establish the Company as the creator of entertainment

and infotainment products and services to feast the viewers

and the advertisers. Through these services, we intend to

become an integral part of the global market. As a

corporation, we will be profitable, productive, creative,

trendsetting and financially rugged with care and concern

for all stake holders.
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For Zee Telefilms, 1998-99 was yet another year of

exceptional accomplishment and growth. Having made

its debut in 1992 as a software production company and

marketing concessionaire, Zee has come a long way with

its recognition as an emerging company of the year. The

35.8 percent total return our Company produced on the

capital employed is of utmost importance to us. We’re

not content with that, but we are happy that it’s increasing

from 34.6 percent in 1997-98 and 33.8 percent in 1996-

97. We continue to manage your business for the long

term, and I think most of our investors probably look at

their investments the same way.

What distinguishes the Company from other

manufacturing industries is that we do not have to incur

expenses in tapping new markets. We draw our

sustenance and growth from our growing IPR. Your

Company’s efforts ultimately confluence into creating

content or IPR. We are now in a position to exploit our

IPR, management and marketing resources to derive

income from new sources, especially from the

subscription and pay markets. This will be achieved by

tapping all possible modes of distribution in new

languages, in new territories and in new frequencies.

The programmes produced and sourced by your

Company continue to draw applause from the viewers

not only in India but from across the world. Because of

the Company’s IPR strength, Zee TV has become a

household name not only in Asia but also in Europe,

USA and Africa. In seven short years, Zee has become

one of the most popular brands in the country.

Far reaching change

The last 12 months have been a period of far-reaching

change, during which the Company took the decision

to enter newer businesses like regional language

programming, broadcasting, sporting events, movie

production, publishing and internet services. With the

planned launch of Direct To Operator (DTO) business,

the Company is gearing itself for competing in the next

millennium. During this time of change, the Company

will continuously enhance its market leadership, with

determination to stay focussed on creating value for our

customers, our viewers and our shareowners.

Back in 1993, few people would have predicted the

growth in the Indian cable and satellite television

industry. In just seven years, Zee has been the driving

force in achieving 38% penetration of all Indian TV

homes. Of the 65 million television homes in India, 25

million have access to Zee TV. The popularity of Zee

has completely transformed the structure of ad-spend

in favour of the television media. Today, television

corners a 35% share of total ad-spend in the country,

up from 20% before the launch of Zee.

When our Company records its Rs. 4 billion in ad-sales,

the country will also spend about 57 billion on

advertisements on other modes — which means we

have plenty of opportunity still ahead. If we look at the

ad-spend as a percentage of GDP of India, it is a mere

0.39% today. In Brazil this ratio is 1.6%, in USA it is

1.34% and in Germany 0.88%. Thus, there is great

scope for growth and in ten years from now, the total

ad-spends will grow manifold.

Much bigger than the current TV advertising market is

the subscription market. We have not yet tapped the

Rs. 38 billion market of subscription revenues in India.

That’s why, as exciting as our achievements were in

1998-99, we’re more excited about the potential

opportunities in the new millennium.

We are aware of the challenges we face as we move

ahead. However, our resolution and commitment to

strengthening our business and making the right

decision for the long term is stronger than before. Much
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of the Board’s time spent during 1998-99 was devoted

to the Company’s ability to spot and exploit long term

growth opportunities.

The Outlook

The media and entertainment sector is still in a nascent

stage in India. From a macro perspective, it is very

obvious that more and more investments would be

poured into this sector in the near future. The initiatives

taken by the Government in according industry status

to this sector will go a long way in developing it faster.

We are confident of maintaining a sustained growth trend

in the coming year.

1999-2000 would be an important year for us. The

Company will be launching new channels in regional

languages. These would be uplinked from India and

advertisement revenue on these channels would accrue

to your Company. Our preparations to compete

effectively in the new millennium took a major step

forward when we tied up with Canal Plus for providing

the technology to start the Direct To Operator (DTO)

business. DTO would open up a new stream of cash

flows for the Company. I firmly believe that in the next

few years, the subscription revenues of Zee would form

a sizeable component of our revenue profile.

You will agree with me that once your Company has

acquired a mass of IPR, it is quite logical that we exploit

the content through all possible modes of distribution.

The change driven by new technology and new ideas is

causing a paradigm shift in the market and is increasingly

setting the terms in favour of your Company. As many

multinational companies worldwide have realised, the

past does not translate into the future. To stay ahead,

we have to continue to evolve.

Acquisition of ZMWL

The company is planning to acquire a 100 percent

interest in Zee Multimedia Worldwide Limited (ZMWL),

subject to approval of shareowners. ZMWL owns and

operates entertainment channels in Europe, USA and

Africa. It also owns 50% interest in Asia Today Limited.

This will allow the Company to capitalise on the growing

popularity of the Zee brand across the world.

Excellence at work

To tap these opportunities effectively, the first

requirement is a highly motivated team. Although it is

not an easy task, we are succeeding to a reasonable

degree. Of fundamental importance is to intensify the

culture of excellence amongst our staff, particularly

senior management. To inculcate a sense of ownership,

we have devised an Employee Stock Option Plan

(ESOP) for key executives. More and more existing as

well as new employees would be taken under the ESOP

scheme, based on the demonstrated ability to set new

challenges for themselves.

Organisational Development is an on-going process at

Zee. Frequent strategic reviews to validate changes to

medium and long-term plans, have become part of our

culture. To that extent, we have accepted living with a

degree of uncertainity. After all, the industry we operate

in is very dynamic and it requires utmost agility to stay

ahead.

Committed to stability

Finally, a word of appreciation and thanks to the many

employees of Zee Network for all that has been achieved

to date. I feel confident that the future, which will present

many new challenges, will also provide exciting

opportunities for personal and professional

development.

I can add that my personal commitment was, and shall

continue to be, a long term one. I would like to reaffirm

that, in the course of any reorganization, it is my belief

that the right formula for continued success is based on

shareholder stability, allied to truly professional

management. We are working hard to achieve the value

you expect from your investment.

Subhash Chandra
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) BUSINESS HEADS

Arvind Kumar, Bhaskar Majumdar, Dheeraj Kapuria,

Hari Goenka, Harish Aggarwal, Madhavi Mutatkar,

Raghvendra Agarwal, Sainath Iyer, Satish Menon,

Sikander Bhasin, Uma Ganesh.

PROGRAMMING & OPERATIONS

Alok Verma, Ashok Kaul, Atul Mathur,

Gajendra Singh, Lakshmi Venkat, Nitin Keni

P S Parasuram, Rajiv Tewari, Raju Santhanam,

Rakesh Khar, Rauf Ahmed, Seema Gupta, Shailesh

Kumar, Somashekhar Patil, Supriya Shastri, Umesh

Upadhyay, Vijay Parab.
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FINANCE & LEGAL

Ahmad Abdi, Arun Aggarwal, Atul Das, B R Jaju, Deepak

Bondre, Dhanwanti Dangi, Hitesh Vakil, M B Zaidi,

R K Agarwal, Sanjay Agrawal, Sunil Rohra

Umesh Pradhan, Vikas Gupta.

CORPORATE SERVICES

A C Saha, Anand Girdhar, Bharat Kumar Raut

John Barno, M K Khera, P C Lahiri, Prafulla Vaidya,

Ranjan Bakshi, R D Tyagi, Richa Sharma, Sanjay

Gaikwad.

MARKETING

Abhijit Saxena, Aditya Ray, Deepak Ranjan,

Gopi Shah, Kanta Advani, Monica Dalton

Mubin Khan, Nazli Shah, Partho Ghosh,

Sandeep Guhathakurta, Sunil Khanna.
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For us at Zee TV today, as has been for the last six
momentous years, the viewer is still the raison d’être .

It would have been easy for us to rest on our laurels;
laurels that everybody is all too familiar with. The fact
that Zee has been the primary growth driver of the
C&S industry in the sub-continent. The fact that Zee is
avidly received in 25 million homes, and watched by a
phenomenal 140 million people in India. The fact that
in Asia, another 70 million viewers in 15 million
households regularly tune in to Zee TV, the fact that
for over 200 million viewers in Asia, not to mention
those in UK, Europe, Africa and the US, Zee is the last
word in entertainment and infotainment.

We could also have had enough reasons to be happy
with the fact that our much plagiarised Zee credo of

Amanat

ALWAYS BETTER ALWAYS AHEAD

India's First Global Media Conglomerate
Entering The Exclusive Billion Dollar Club

‘wholesome family entertainment’ with its rich and
creative programming mix, has defined Indian
television. The fact that a loyal fan following amongst
viewers has been built purely on the basis of our much
loved and superior programming properties such as
Sa-Re-Ga-Ma, Hum Paanch, Amanat, Hasratein,
Antakshari and other TRP busting shows which have
redefined TV viewership.

A concerted effort to be able to cater to all types of
tastes has led to the happy state of affairs wherein,
Zee boasts of a fascinating range of programmes. From
path-breaking talk shows to incisive news analysis, rip-
roaring sitcoms to subtler shades of humour, enthralling
soaps to spine-chilling thrillers, musical game shows
to Bollywood block-blusters.

Even today, we could rest easy on the fact that
independent statistics by leading market research
agencies bear out that 20 out of the top 25 TV
programmes are on Zee TV. This not only affirms our
contention that our programming has been and still
comes as a breath of fresh air in the increasing clutter
of Hindi general entertainment channels but, more
importantly, we have been providing increasing value
to our advertisers over the years.

It would have been even more easier for us to sit
back and reflect on the fact that, Zee Network has
built not only the largest Hindi feature films library
containing 2,500 titles, but also the largest reserves
of Hindi TV software - a much-prized treasure chest
of more than 15,000 hours of original Hindi
programming.

We could go on about other facts that simply imply
that as far as success goes, Zee TV is the one steady
beacon in an industry that is constantly changing and
re-inventing itself and which is cluttered with many
me-too channels.
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Yet in these fast track times, when the industry has
been experiencing exciting times on major fronts, even
the slightest hubris is but a sure recipe for disaster. It is
with this mindset and the welfare of shareholders and
stakeholders in mind, that Zee TV has undergone a
transformation in the last year. Innovative solutions have
been brought to bear on policy and administrative
aspects, enabling a restructuring of our businesses and
subsequent evolution and growth.

On the programming front, Zee has innovated in
setting up the system of utilising the services of
independent producers to create one-off shows for the
channel. This system of creating episodic time bands
especially for our properties such as ‘Rishtey’, ‘X-Zone’
and ‘Saturday Suspense’ has been much appreciated.
Not only has new talent been unearthed, viewer
interest and satisfaction have also been ensured. This
series of initiatives will continue in the future.

Another area where viewer delight has been more than
assured has been through the airing of Mega Movies.
Blockbuster movie titles like ‘Dil Se’, ‘Doli Saja Ke
Rakhna’, ‘Deewana Mastana’ have already been aired
and many others are in the pipeline. The tremendous
response as evidenced by the stratospheric TRP’s has
only vindicated our decision.

A few of our shows have been revamped. Notable
among them are ‘Public Demand’ and ‘Aur Ek Minute’.
Fresh new shows have been aired - ‘Raahein’, ‘Hip Hip

shows under this band have quickly established
themselves.

Zee TV has constantly endeavoured to keep in touch
with its viewers and to stay in tune with the viewers‘
sentiments. We have successfully recycled and
repositioned existing programmes on the channel and
obtained a better response from advertisers and

viewers. We have converted weekly programmes into
daily-scheduled programmes and starting last year have
defined time-band wise programmes, which has given
us more media power and the flexibility to launch new
programmes.

As always, the search for viewer satisfaction is of
paramount importance to us. A revamp of the existing
programming team, infusion of fresh blood, more
transparent systems and an increased emphasis on
fostering creativity have been the mantras for this last
year. We will also be actively looking at converting our
properties into brands and conducting appropriate
brand building exercises.

These moves and the new initiatives planned for the future
have only consolidated our clout with advertisers. We
are still able to charge a comfortable premium on our
rates and we are fully booked for space on many of our
properties. This has only strengthened our belief – what
is good for the viewer is even better for us.

And did we mention, the viewer is still our raison d’etre?

Aashirwad

Hurray’, ‘Cross Fire’ and ‘Chota Muh Aur Badi Baat’ –
to name a few. These well thought out and researched
shows have novel central ideas and are steadily
climbing the popularity ratings.

Another initiative that has shown immediate success
has been the formation of specialised time bands. The
daily afternoon bouquet of shows for our women
viewers – ‘Darpan’ – is such an endeavour. ’Sanskar’,
‘Mausam’ and ‘Saath Saath’, which are some of the

Baat Ban Jaaye

❒ Reach of 140 million people in 25 million homes in India

❒ Reach of 70 million viewers in 15 million homes in other

parts of Asia and the World

❒ 15,000 hours of original programming and 2,500 movie

titles

❒ 35 out of the top 50 programmes are on Zee TV

❒ Average All Day GRPs consistently above the 500 mark

❒ Prime Time GRPs between 8 PM and 10 PM consistently

outstripping competitors at the 200 mark
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 Pioneering Pay TV Through Cinema :
The Great Indian Religion

M O V I E S  M A S T I  M A G I C

Vinashak

What has been notable about Zee Cinema is that it

probably became only the second Hindi channel, after

Zee TV, to get into the right side of the balance sheet –

and that too in less than two years. Zee Cinema is

today a part of the flanking strategy that is helping

defend Zee’s viewership against competing channels

like Star Plus, Doordarshan, Sony and other new

entrants.

In fact, our belief in the intrinsic potential of the channel,

given that movies are a passion with Indian audiences,

has been borne out by the fact that the viewership

has grown by leaps and bounds – up

32 %, inspite of the fact that it has always been a pay

channel.

Zee Cinema has just stuck to the basics in its ride to the

top - better telecast quality, excellent packaging and

presentation of material, lesser advertising clutter in

the middle of telecasts, and a string of highly watched

and eagerly awaited blockbuster movies and perennial

favourites – all contributing to a considerably enhanced

and pleasurable movie watching experience for the

viewer. Inspite of the presence of Free-To-Air movie

channels like DD Movie Club and city-specific cable

channels, Zee Cinema has been holding its own.

Movies are the great Indian obsession. It was with this

underlying thought that Zee Cinema was launched in

1995. Today, the rich film based entertainment

provided by Zee Cinema has more than fulfilled

expectations and has indeed, proved an asset to Zee

Network - as a complement to Zee TV and as an able

feint to the competition.
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Zee Cinema’s initial success can be attributed to the policy

of encouraging liberal usage of its signal by cable

operators, even at the cost of under-declaration. Later

on, the programming strength was what boosted the

channel’s success. Path breaking programming initiatives

such as dedicated mythological movie days and dedicated

black and white movie days, have ensured that even

eclectic audience tastes have been satisfied. Zee Cinema

also salutes the pioneers of Indian Cinema. Special

screenings and retrospectives to commemorate

anniversaries of past and present stars and technicians

have added allure to the channel for the serious movie

buff.

Today, Zee Cinema is making rapid strides; going from

strength to strength, reinforcing its repertoire of Hindi

films and consolidating its position as the preferred

channel for Hindi movies.

ZEE CINEMA – THE POPULARITY (GRPs)

Zee Cinema Star Plus Sony

Jan 99 202.9 136.3 388.8

Feb 99 191.7 118.7 354.9

Mar 99 231.4 127.7 366.4

Apr 99 191.7 121.3 339.3

May 99 138.2 105.8 334.9

June 99 194.6 112.8 309.9

SOURCE - INTAM-MUM/DEL/AHMD AUG.; Aud : Ind.4 +

And in keeping with the ethos of the Network, we are

not resting on our laurels with the achievements of

Zee Cinema. More captivating movies, an even better

look, innovative programming solutions to enthrall the

viewers and help the advertisers add more value and

get more reach for his advertising rupee – Zee Cinema

shall consolidate its numero uno status.

Dil Se
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News Any Time; Everytime

The Zee News Channel, with its new look, provides

back to back news throughout the day. Styled along

the lines of ‘Coffee Shops’ of five star hotels, the channel

will telecast news across different time bands that

include State News, National News, South Asian and

International News, etc. Besides these, Zee News

telecasts one English bulletin a day that will be

increased to two soon.

The metamorphosis is not just about new sets, new

attire, new editorial staff, new bureaus, new anchors

or new language; it is all about a new mind-set. It is

the first Indian news channel to show the latest BSE

Index scroll with Ups and Downs highlighted.

India Votes Again

The change in name from Zee India TV to Zee News

also marks the channel's shift in emphasis from a strictly

Indian orientation to a more international one. The

Zee News channel will soon be launched  in Europe,

Africa and America.

Zee News will lay more emphasis on socio-economic

cultural happenings, science and technology and

sports. Emphasis on politics will be comparatively

reduced. From the time when political news alone was

considered to be news; viewer and reader interest

today has shifted to soft news. Life-style, culture, sports

and science has displaced politics. This change is more

marked in the youth.

Zee News has announced a significant change in its

editorial policy with a thrust on  The Truth – Only The

Truth – The Whole Truth and Nothing Else But The

Truth. It is a channel for broadcasters and not for

campaigners with a political philosophy, nor for

personal likes or dislikes, nor for any business interests,

nor any compromise on the merit of news, nor for any

one with scores to settle. News is one product that

keeps evolving everyday, and Zee News itself continues

to change everyday, sensibly and sensitively handling

this important product.

Zee News today delivers more GRPs than any other

News Channel, with a loyal and near monopolistic
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viewership in the Hindi belt. The focus is on topical

issues, and it has identified elections as its  main plank

for the near future.

Zee News has worked out one of the most elaborate,

incisive and analytical programs on the elections to be

found on Indian TV.  Hosted by the redoubtable Vinod

Dua, ’India Votes Again‘; the mother brand for the

entire election broadcast, will take viewers through its

various stages in a phased and organized manner.

The entire election package seeks quality production

as its hallmark, where the segments drawn up in the

election schedule will feature cut packages produced

by a team of dedicated staffers.

Lending support to Vinod Dua are surveys and research

to assess trends and other election related angles. Each

survey covers twenty five states, and with its huge

sample size of fifteen thousand respondents, the survey

ensures an error margin lower than 3%. This is the first

time that a television channel has undertaken a survey

of such magnitude. More importantly, ’We, The People‘

retains the same sample throughout the series. Zee

News, consequently, becomes the only channel to

assess and study the changing trends and perceptions

of the nation so comprehensively.

Zee News : Viewership Share

CNBC 4%

TVI 4%

Zee News 51%

CNN 4%

BBC 7%

Star News 30%

SOURCE - INTAM

All Day Relative Channel Shares (Ind 15+, Mum/Del/Ahm
4 week Avg. 14th Jun-11th Jul.)

We the people

Additionally, every night from Sunday to Friday at 10.30

p.m. Zee News telecasts a programme called

‘Campaign Trail’.  In this programme our News Team

goes across to constituencies to report the problems

faced by the voters, their reactions, etc.

On Saturday’s at 10.30 p.m. on the programme

‘Turning Point’, our News Team tackles issues that have

occupied the national headlines that would impact the

elections. This is then debated in the studio by a panel

of eminent political personalities and experts.

To support this mega exercise, the latest technology

would be co-opted and infrastructure set up. On  a

permanent basis, bureaus in 14 Indian cities that

include Mumbai, Delhi, Chennai, Bangalore, Patna and

Lucknow, will be facilitated with live V-Sat linkages,

making Zee News the only satellite news channel to

have linkages with so many cities. The live V-Sat link

will allow Zee News to broadcast direct from the bureau

– without re-routes from any centralised location.

News bureaus are also being set up in various

international cities. Apart from existing bureaus in

Kathmandu and London, new ones will be opened

soon in Dhaka, Rawalpindi, Karachi, Dubai, New York,

Los Angeles and Johannesburg among other

international cities.
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At Zee constant re-invention is the key. None exemplify

this innate philosophy more than SitiCable. The largest

Cable TV Network in the country with approximately

8,000 km of cable and serving 4.3 million homes in

over 40 cities, SitiCable has a 20% market share of the

country’s C&S homes; with its market share in some

select metros being more than 60%.

The Future In The Form Of
Convergence Is Here

Siti Cinema combines the best of a Cable Channel
with that of a Satellite Channel

Si
ti
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le

Shimla Queen organised in association with SitiCableSitiCable presence in India

Using state-of-the-art imported cables and network

equipment, each serving 20,000 to 50,000 homes,

SitiCable’s systems are capable of carrying two-way

communication. With decision-making at the level

closest to the subscribers, thanks to the decentralised

regional structure of SitiCable, it is best equipped to

meet head-on, the challenges of emerging technology

and subscriber needs.

Providing city-specific programming covering the city’s

civic issues and social problems, and live telecasts of

important events in each city add more value to

SitiCable’s proposition. Siti Channel – the city specific
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❒ Largest Cable Operator Network in India

❒ Direct reach in 43 cities

❒ Reaches 180 cities through its franchise network

❒ 8,000 km of cable plant

❒ Connectivity of 4.3 million cable homes

❒ More than 60% market share in the top 6 metros of
India

service - has cable rights for more than 2,000 quality

movies and has now expanded into a new service –

Siti Cinema, launched in April 1999. It will continue to

acquire rights for new movies, thus strengthening the

existing library of rights and capitalising on Zee's library.

Again, we do not want to rest on our laurels, for there

is much to be done in the realm of cable. The World

over, the cable television industry is evolving from its

traditional role as just a provider of channels.

Convergence technologies have made possible the

marriage of voice, video and data. Unparalelled

opportunities to utilise the existing cable networks for

providing the subscriber with a variety of options have

opened up. SitiCable has several plans to exploit such

opportunities.

SitiCable would tie up with its sister concern, ZTL, to

provide Internet services to its subscribers. ZTL has

already been granted the category 'A' license to

become a nation-wide Internet Service Provider (ISP).

A pilot project has been successfully completed with

VXL, Bangalore to test the cable modems and related

technology. The service has been much appreciated

and plans to take this on a nation wide scale will be

finalised soon. Soon SitiCable subscribers can watch

their favourite TV channel, surf the Internet, converse

with dear ones and participate in a host of interactive

applications such as telebanking and teleshopping.

The technology is here. And SitiCable is poised to capture

the benefits of this technology – offering even more

value to its subscribers – be it voice, video or data.

Siti Cinema Launch

Siti Millennium Quiz
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It is a natural corollary for a media house to look for

and achieve synergies in varied forms. It was with this

intent in mind that Zee Music was launched four years

ago. Today, Zee Music is a premier audio company

with over 200 film titles and private albums.

With a professional approach and a profitable balance

between film and non-film music titles, Zee Music has

proved to be an able marketing and promotional

platform for audio products. Riding on the immense

reach of the mother channel, Zee TV, the sales of Zee

Music’s products have benefitted immensely.

The Sounds Of Success With Music

in March ’98 with a million copies sold and ‘Woh Kaun

Thi’ launched in July ’98 with close to 250,000 units

augurs well for the chosen strategy. In August, 1998

the album ‘Sapnay’ sung by the artistes of Sa Re Ga

Ma was launched.

Our contention, that if managed professionally, this

low-risk, low-cost, high-benefit and modest-profits

segment can certainly yield the right amount of

During the financial year 1998-99, Zee Music’s strategic

focus on the private non-film audio segment has paid

rich dividends, with four albums being successfully

completed and launched. ‘Yaro Sab Dua Karo’ launched
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dividends, has certainly been borne out by our modest

yet pioneering success. On the basis of the maturity

that Zee Music has developed in the music business,

we have successfully launched two new artistes –

Paloma and Sunil Maheshwari.

A host of such well packaged, slickly produced and

effectively marketed private albums are already on

the shelves and are expected to do well. ‘Ye Dil

Deewana’, ‘Shukrana’ and ‘Mere Dil Ke Aangan Mein’

are titles which befit the repertoire of any world class

music company. Zee Music is also foraying into

regional languages, having recently readied a

Marathi album sung by winners of the popular

Sa Re Ga Ma contest on Zee TV in addition to Bengali

and Bhojpuri albums.

❒ Five movie based albums were launched during the last
financial year

❒ Four music albums were launched during 1998-99 on the
private non-film audio segment

❒ Three new albums launched in the devotional segment

❒ One million copies of ‘Yaaro Sab Dua Karo’ sold

❒ Billings of Rs. 258 lakhs

We have strengthened our sales and distribution

system by setting up a direct distribution system at

Himachal  Pradesh, Or issa and Gujarat and

established an elaborate dealer network in the

states of Uttar Pradesh and Bihar. The organisational

set-up was also restructured to afford greater

visibi l i ty of Zee Music products, both in the

electronic and print media. A special cell to promote

the artiste and the album in a focussed manner

was also made functional.

This year, was a year of re-engineering for Zee Music

and it will allow it to scale new heights in the coming

financial year.

Zee Music has tapped the tremendous market for

devotional music by launching three well-received

albums. And, as the driver of any music business in

India is film based albums, Zee Music has not neglected

this segment launching five movie albums in the last

financial year.
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Virtual Univ. :
Preparing For The New Millennium
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Zee Education (ZED), the educational arm of Zee Network

has pioneered technology-led education in the country. With

a strong belief in using technology as an educational

medium, and a firm commitment to harness its power for

Mr. Pawan Kumar Chamling Chief Minister,
Sikkim at the launch of ZED Career Academy in

Gangtok.

the cause of career based training, Zee Education has utilised

television and other media such as the Internet & Multimedia

to the fullest.

ZED has introduced a number of high impact educational

programmes in the areas of Information Technology.

Management, Engineering preparatory subjects,

Telecommunications and curriculum-based learning. Today,

ZED brings educational services to learners around the

country in a number of ways. Through television, through

our learning centres - the ZED Points and ZED Career

Academies, through the ZED Virtual Univ., by working in

close conjunction with employers, and of course through

the Internet. We are probably the only educational service

provider in India that has been able to use all these

technologies simultaneously and seamlessly to provide the

student with a complete learning experience.

ZED has been able to offer the best to the vast community of

learners in the country, through strategic alliances with

leading academic organisations. This year, Zee Education has

achieved the unique distinction of being able to offer a range

of University approved degrees and diplomas through

alliances with Guru Ghasidas University, SNDT Women’s

University, and Kurukshetra University.

In every part of India, from the largest metros to the smallest

towns Zee Education is present through its learning centres.

These centres provide convenience, a range of choices and
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careers through two types of learning centres, the ZED Points

and the ZED Career Academy.

Each of these centres is equipped with the latest in multi-

media computers, television sets, the latest books, and of

course, expert faculty. But this is where the similarity ends,

for each of these centres delivers an entirely different set of

benefits to the learner. ZED Point is aimed at providing

knowledge & information services to the entire family. As the

country moves towards greater use of the Internet, the ZED

Points will focus on increasing Internet awareness in the

country while, the ZED Career Academy provides focussed

career courses to the job seeker of tomorrow, with a special

emphasis on Internet related training, with its Netsmart range

of courses. Today ZED has gone international with ZED

Centres being launched in Nepal and Bangladesh.

And for those who either live too far away from ZED Centres,

or whose work pressures do not allow them to attend regular

classes, there is the ZED Virtual Univ., which through a range

of courses, brings Zee Education home to you. And of course,

now in the Internet era, courses from ZED are available on-

line. ZED Online is an Internet learning facility currently

offering three courses on the Internet–

E-Commerce, Human Resources and Interior Designing. ZED

Online provides the best courses to learn virtually at your

own convenience.

This year ZED has been able to extend its philosophy of

convenience, choice & easy access to companies. The ZED

Corporate Solutions team offers customised solutions to a

number of leading clients in a variety of areas - be it Internet

training for the medical profession or training on cross-

cultural trends for software engineers going abroad.

The Indian urban youth have a lot at stake in today’s world.

Though essentially carefree & fun loving by nature, the cut-

throat competition in today’s world, forces them to be very

cautious while making career decisions. ZED Gateway, India’s

❒ ZED Gateway, India’s first career magazine launched

❒ ZED Online has launched India’s first online courses – in
E-Commerce, Human Resources, and Interior Designing

❒ The ZED Virtual Univ. offers 10 vocational courses on a
distance learning mode

❒ Gross billings of Rs 644 lacs

first youth oriented web magazine, is infact, a reflection of

various facets of careers, jobs, education and general

knowledge that enables youth to gear up for the challenges

ahead. Each issue of Zed Gateway helps the student prepare

better for the various competitive examinations by providing

examination papers with solutions. On-line testing facility is

also available to students, who can complete the question

paper and get their score immediately. In other words, a

complete youth magazine on the net, giving the youth all

that they want, virtually.

India has finally entered the Information era. Zee Education

is at the forefront tapping various opportunities that will guide

students to a better tomorrow.

Zed Gateway Web Magazine
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Pioneering Hi-tech Animation Techniques

The Zee Institute of Creative Arts (ZICA) was launched on

14th August, 1995 as India’s first full-fledged Institute for

animation film-making and television software production.

The Institute is dedicated to the training of new cadres of

professionals, to serve the growing demands of the animation

and entertainment industry, with a special focus on

animation.

There is a two-fold opportunity in the field of animation. Firstly,

animation work is gaining popularity in India, as is evident

from the import and dubbing of scores of animated features

in India. Animated feature films are also gaining currency

amongst the audience. Secondly, animation work has

traditionally been farmed out to venues which offer cost

effective labour. With our low-cost manpower and superb

technical skills, we can definitely capture a big slice of this

market.

These considerations have been the rationale for setting up

ZICA. The Institute has embarked upon ambitious training

programmes with a view to offer need based innovative

courses on various aspects of Computer Animation and 3D

Animation, coupled with TV production.

ZICA at present, has about 100 animators undergoing

training/working in animation film-making. It has the biggest

facility for imparting such training in India and South Asia.

Equipped with the latest state-of-the-art facilities, ZICA is all

set to pioneer hi-tech animation techniques like 2D,

traditional cell animation, computer animation and TV

production.

The present faculty has been trained by Russian instructors,

specially invited from the Soyuz Multi Film Studio-a 60-year

old animation studio, which ranks third in studio animation

in the world. Complementing this team is a panel of Indian

experts drawn from different segments of the Film, Television

and Computer Industry.

ZICA aims to create every month, a one hour animated work

for TV, a feature film every three years and two short 90

minute films every year, besides the ongoing process of

training while envisaging a minimum growth of 35%

annually in revenues and infrastructure.

And keeping apace with these ambitions, ZICA has had the

distinction of its short films being screened at International

Film Festivals at New York and Chicago and has bagged a

score of animation contracts - notably that of creating

animation for the Ministry of Home and Defence.  It has

won a host of prizes at various competitions and is currently

supported by 100 well trained animators.
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❒ About 100 animators are undergoing training at the
studios

❒ Aims to create one full length feature film every three
years and a one hour animated work for TV every month

❒ Its short films have been screened at the International
Film Festivals at New York and Chicago

❒ Bagged contracts from Ministry of Home and Defence
for creating animation.

live and animated characters and is shot in the anamorphic

(cinemascope) format.

WINGS OF FREEDOM

ZICA Studios has completed a one hour tele-film depicting

the entire freedom struggle in animation. All the characters

have been animated keeping in view authenticity and

historical facts. This one hour film is slated to be released on

the television during the month of August, 1999. The film is

being dedicated to the heroes of the Indian freedom struggle.

This film has been made with the aim of creating awareness

amongst the young children of the country  about those

who laid down their lives in the freedom struggle.

BHAGMATI

ZICA’s first major offer - the animated full length feature film

“Bhagmati” – is nearing completion. A glorious first in the

annals of the Indian  Film Industry, “Bhagmati” the Hindi

version of, “The Queen of Fortunes”, is a unique blend of

A still from Bhagmati

The success of “Bhagmati” is only a precursor of the ambitious

projects planned by ZICA. And in keeping with our aim of

giving the very best to the media industry and the viewer,

ZICA shall strive to fulfill its promise.
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Growing From Strength To Strength

www. zeecineawards.com is exclusively dedicated

to the Zee Cine Awards and had the added distinction

of webcasting this year’s Lux Zee Cine Awards live on

the Internet. A phenomenal 22 million hits were

received  on the site in just three months beginning

January to March, 1999. A record breaking 10,280

people logged on to watch the live webcast of the

Second Lux Zee Cine Awards.

A measure of the site’s success can be gauged from

the fact that the site finds a link in the Real Networks

site – the world’s premier audio/video site guide.

Besides, our site was showcased in the May 1999 Real

Network conference at San Fransisco, as one of the

top event-based sites in the world.

www.zeecineawards.com is indeed the number one

site for film aficionados in India and the world.

With the growing popularity and relevance of the

Internet world-wide, the need to promote our Network

and its various channels on the Net was strongly felt.

This gave rise to the Zee website

www.zeetelevison.com, which was launched in

August 1996.

The website has been growing from strength to

strength since the past two years and has come to

represent the corporate face of Zee Network. The

www.zeetelevision.com site routinely registers hits

in excess of 90,000 per day and is widely referred to

by netizens across the world. This site which provides

information about our FPC across the world, is also

the reference point for the investor and the serious

business researcher.

Reiterating our resolve of not resting on our laurels,

we have added two more sites to our repertoire –

www.zeecineawards.com  and www.

zeepremiere.com
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❒ www.zeetelevision.com, the flagship site of Zee Network,
registers hits in excess of 90,000 per day.

❒ Two more sites have been added –
www.zeecineawards.com and www.zeepremiere.com

❒ The Zee Cine Awards function was webcast live on the
Internet.

❒ A phenomenal 22 million hits received on the Zee Cine
Awards site between January and March, 1999.

❒ Zee Premiere site is registering close to 80,000 hits a day

are forging ahead by adding more interactive features

and revamping our sites. Simultaneous to the revamp

of the Zee News channel, we shall provide live news

both in the audio and the video format to netizens of

the www.zeetelevision.com site. E-commerce

applications on all our sites are also being actively

looked into.

As befits an integrated media house the Internet shall

also be tapped to its fullest potential by Zee.

www.zeepremiere.com is a site that was set up as

an adjunct to the Zee Premiere magazine launched in

November 1998. Packed with many interactive features

such as chat rooms, forums and live interfaces with

stars, the site also carries stories and articles from current

issues of Premiere. The site is unique in the sense that

the print version and the internet versions are released

simultaneously for readers and netizens.

www.zeepremiere.com is steadily gaining popularity

with close to 80,000 hits a day.

Another site that has been serving netizens for long

and has an even more expanded role to play in the

coming networked era is www.zeeeducation.com.

As a base for the ZED Virtual Univ., this much and well

utilised site is already at the forefront of the new wave

of education impartation through the Internet.

No company today can afford to be blasé about the

potential and the tremendous reach that the Internet

will come to enjoy in the immediate future. At Zee we

www.zeepremiere.com
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Zee Network firmly believes in reaching out to its

audiences wherever they may be. The South Asian

community is spread throughout the length and

breadth of the world. Today, the South Asian

community is of relevance in most countries – both

financially and culturally. In UK and the US, South Asians

form one of the most respected and professionally

accomplished communities. In other parts of the world

like Africa and Hong Kong, they are among the

wealthiest sections of  society.

Zee TV was launched seven years ago, in 1992, with

the objective of connecting South Asians across the

globe. To offer them a common platform to share their

similar and strongly held beliefs, tastes, culture, music,

dance and heritage, no matter where they are located.

After its successful launch in Asia, Zee TV began its

operations in UK in 1995, in Africa in 1996, and the

US in 1998.

Zee TV in UK and Europe is telecast through the Astra

1 D satellite. It is available on BSkyB’s DTH platform as

well as in all leading cable channel networks in the UK

and Europe with a ratio of 60 : 40 for DTH to Cable. It

is now connected to over 155,000 homes in Europe -

125,000 in UK alone and 30,000 in the rest of Europe.

Zee TV enjoys a viewership of over a million people

spread across more than a third of all Asian homes in

Europe – a feat achieved in just three years of operation.

In UK, Zee TV reaches some 22 counties and in Europe

it reaches Germany, France, Holland, Spain, Denmark,

Portugal and Sweden. Perceived and positioned as a

premium offering, 50% of Zee TV viewers are in SEC

ABC and about 64% viewing time is spent watching

Zee TV.

In Africa, Zee has been operating for just two years

and, in this short period, has already established a niche

for itself. It is available in South Africa as well as 35

other African countries like Kenya, Tanzania and

Mozambique. Though initially the viewership was

modest, once Zee began concentrating on distribution

as a focus area, the numbers started picking up

substantially and today, Zee is available in over 40,000

households – 22,800 in South Africa and 17,200 in

the rest of Africa.

In July 1998, Zee TV launched operations in the US on

EchoStar’s DTH platform. We believe that, in less than

a year, we would be able to reach over 120,000 South

Asians in the US. In vindication of this belief, we are

An Indian Multinational
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currently reaching 35,000 households – about 100,000

South Asians. Again positioned as a premium offering,

Zee is the only South Asian channel to touch this figure

with competitors lagging far behind. We are currently

available in 52 states of the US and by July this year

with availability on cable through a tie up with TCI,

Zee will be in a position to be the channel of choice

for over 200,000 households.

Besides these three international broadcasting

operations, Zee TV properties and software are carried

to a number of other countries like Mauritius, Fiji, New

Zealand and Malaysia through their respective national

networks.

Zee has always believed in giving the viewer first priority

and has created a programming mix that weaves a

rich matrix of entertainment, local relevance and ethnic

appeal. About 80% of content is the same as that of

Zee India with popular programmes like Amanat,

Sa Re Ga Ma, Antakshari and Daraar. And about 20%

locally produced programmes which include talk-

shows, game shows and other viewer – interactive

programmes, specially created to cater to the needs of

the Asians living in each country.

In another strategic endeavour, Zee has decided to

organise a large number of events in UK to cater to

the pay market subscribers and thus give them

additional benefits vis-à-vis the ordinary subscriber. Top

film stars like Shah Rukh, Akshay, Juhi and Kajol, reputed

pop groups such as Junoon have performed live for

our audiences and many of our shows are being shot

abroad.

On the anvil are a number of strategic initiatives to

enthrall South Asians abroad. Synergies will be sought

by entering the print medium in Europe. In August

this year, Music Asia will be launched in Europe and

Africa, becoming the only 24-hour Hindi music channel

in these continents. From June 1999, Zee Africa will

beam to Mauritius and plans to tap the hitherto

unexplored Canadian market will also be firmed up.

Urdu programming will be taken up, and an increased

emphasis on Asian news will be imparted to all our

news programmes.

All in all, we aim to truly become the one and only

choice for South Asians across the world. We are sure

that you will agree that no other media option provides

even a remotely comparable alternative for reaching

out to Asians anywhere across the globe as successfully.

❒ Zee became available in UK in 1995, in Africa in
1996 and in USA in 1998

❒ Available in major countries in Europe reaching more
than 155,000 homes

❒ Available in more than 35 countries in Africa with a
connectivity of 40,000 homes

❒ In less than one year of its launch, it is connected to
35,000 homes in USA

Zee takes immense pride in bringing the twin passions

of any South Asian directly to the home – movies and

cricket. The latest Hindi films are brought to the viewer

a mere six months after their release. The very best in

live sports action is part of the offer too. The recent

Sharjah Cup was shown on Zee UK and Africa and the

India, Pakistan and Sri Lanka Triangular series was

telecast live on Zee US.
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By now, the Zee Cine Awards are well established and

acknowledged by sceptics and critics alike. More

importantly, these are the first awards to recognise true

public opinion. Even the average film viewer and the

general public have accepted the award as their very

own – a fact ratified by more than 70,000 people,

who voted to choose their favourite artistes across the

length and breadth of the country.

A milestone was laid - one that will change the

character of film awards for all years to come; a

milestone vetted by PriceWaterhouseCoopers – the

agency which oversees the Oscars; a milestone which

by its totally transparent and fool-proof public voting

system has set standards for judging the popularity of

films; a milestone that saw stunning performances from

top Indian stars and popular international acts; a

milestone which saw unprecedented numbers

storming the venue for a glimpse of the event.

Executed at the outset as a TV event and coupled with

slick presentation, Zee Cine Awards notched almost

unbelievable TRP ratings. The first Award ceremony was

shown live on Zee TV in Asia, Europe and Africa and on

Doordarshan, totally reaching over 250 million viewers.

Zee Cine Awards (live) on Zee TV notched TRPs of 18

and 23.2 in Mumbai and Delhi respectively. The second

Award ceremony notched impressive TRP’s too – a 5 city

Of The People, By The People,
For The Industry

On 14th  March ,1998, Zee Network added yet another

dimension to its multi-faceted character as it launched

the ‘Zee Cine Awards For Excellence In Cinema - The

Democratic Way’, in a glittering function at the Andheri

Sports Complex.

And on 14th March 1999, the second Zee Cine Awards

surpassed the glamour and the glitter of the first. We

are sure that this will be the rule rather than the

exception.

Shah Rukh Khan receiving the Best Actor Award
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average across all age groups between 12.6 to 13.8

and a channel share between 55.8% and 61.1%

The second edition of the Awards was also webcast

live on the Internet – a first in the annals of Indian

events – so that netizens across the globe could catch

it live on the Net. With the Zee Cine Awards site already

registering about 22 million hits before the event, the

webcast was logged onto by about 10,280 people

around the world.

The Awards have also drawn the appreciation of the

film industry by recognising the unsung heroes behind

the scenes. A separate ceremony for recognising

technical excellence in 15 different departments of film-

making drew tremendous response from the film

industry and the public.

Zee Cine Awards – TRPs (3 City Avg.)

Channel Mum Del Ahm Avg.

2nd Zee Cine Awards Zee TV 14.1 11.0 10.0 12.5

43rd Filmfare Awards DD 1 6.7 3.8 5.5 5.6

Karan Johar receiving the Best Director Award

SOURCE-INTAM

Madhuri Dixit performing at the 2nd
Zee Cine Awards Nite

The Zee Cine Awards is a continuing exercise in our

quest towards synergy. And the fact that it salutes the

103-year-old Film Industry which has given us so many

memories is only a happy coincidence. Given the

strong response to the event, we are quite confident

that 1999 has seen the dawn of another exemplary

brand of Zee Network.

Daler Mehendi performing at the 2nd
Zee Cine Awards Nite
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person behind the star, the story behind the film

and the sweat, toil and tears that go into film

making rather than a cheap scandal. In other words,

Zee Premiere puts ‘cinema first’. Without the

The Art Before The Artist, The Cinema Before The Star

As a step further in our quest to achieve synergies

across all forms of media, on October 24, 1998,

we launched Zee Premiere – a film magazine with

a difference. The magazine is packaged as a

sophisticated glossy, which is more interested in the

The inaugural issue of Zee Premiere

sensation seeking and the gossip mongering

indulged in by other magazines, Zee Premiere has

str iven to achieve the pr is t ine form of f i lm

reportage that has unfortunately not been in

evidence in our country.

With interesting sections showcasing the persona of

P
re

m
ie

re
Z
e
e

Dilip Kumar cutting the cake at the launch of
Zee Premiere

At the Premiere Launch
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❒ Inaugural print run of 14,700 in November 1998

❒ 45,000 copies sold in July 1999

❒ Well received by the Film Industry and readers

alike

The honourable Minister of State for Information
flipping through the inaugural issue.

the stars, portfolios of leading photographers, an

archives section dealing with our glorious film tradition,

a pull-out section, in-depth analyses and interviews,

information and facts about the various facets of the

industry; Zee Premiere has everything for the lay reader

as well as the serious student of cinema.

The fact that this too has paid commercial dividends

has only justified our faith in the wish of the film industry

and the ardent desire of the majority of readers. Since

its launch, the magazine, which began with a print

run of 14,728 in the inaugural November issue has

now touched 44,956 copies for the April 1999 issue.

Exports to the US and UK which began in February

1999 touch 3,000 – 4,000 copies a month. Ad

revenues have averaged around Rs. 6.5 lakhs with 35-

40 ad pages per issue. Advertising support comes from

majors such as Colgate-Palmolive, HLL, Cadbury, Nestle,

Sansui, Titan, Johnson & Johnson, Coca-Cola, Dabur,

Marico, Siemens, Britannia, TVS, LML, Aiwa and a host

of other corporates.

Each new issue of Zee Premiere has a dedicated

promo on Zee channels and distribution is handled

by the reputed India Book House (IBH). The

indications so far, augur well for the success of

Zee Premiere and we  shall strive to replicate this

success many times over.

Pallavi Joshi & Vinod Rathod performing at the Zee Premiere Launch



17th Annual Report 1998-99

32
ZEE TELEFILMS LIMITED

Top 20 Programmes

Amanat – Thursday’s 20:30 hrs.

In
 T

o
p
 2

0

Aashirwad – Friday’s 21:30 hrs.

X-Zone  – Thursday’s 21:00 hrs. Hudd Kar Di – Monday’s 21:00 hrs.

Z
e
e

The 2nd Zee Cine Awards

Hasratein – Tuesday’s 21:30 hrs.

Entertainer Movie –  Sunday’s 21:30 hrs.
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Top 20 Programmes in C & S Homes – March ’99
No. Day Programme Genre Channel Start Time TRP

1 Thu Amanat Soap Zee TV 20:31 12.9
2 Sun Lux Zee Cine Awards Event Zee TV 21:29 12.6
3 Sun Sunday Entertainer Movie Film Zee TV 21.30 10.1
4 Wed CID Thriller Sony 21:36 10.5
5 Tue Hasratein Soap Zee TV 21:30 9.2
6 Fri Aashirwad Soap Zee TV 21:35 9.1
7 Tue India's Most Wanted Thriller Zee TV 22:08 8.7
8 Wed Hum Sub Ek Hain Sitcom Sony 21:06 8.1
9 Sat The Queen in Concert Event Sony 20:01 7.5
10 Thu X-Zone Thriller Zee TV 21:14 7.1
11 Thu Aahat Thriller Sony 21:01 7.0
12 Fri Heena Soap Sony 21:05 6.7
13 Mon Hudd Kar Di Sitcom Zee TV 21:01 6.3
14 Wed Colgate Gel Boogie Woogie Game Show Sony 20:32 6.3
15 Tue Shapath Thriller Zee TV 21:00 6.0
16 Tue Nirma Hum Paanch Sitcom Zee TV 20:00 5.7
17 Fri Rishtey Serial Zee TV 20:34 5.7
18 Mon Thoda Hai Thode ki Zaroorat Hai Soap Sony 21:37 5.2
19 Fri Mano Ya Na Mano Thriller Zee TV 22:12 5.2
20 Mon Saans Soap Star Plus 20:30 5.1

Source : INTAM

Shapath – Tuesday’s 21:00 hrs. Hum Paanch  – Tuesday’s 20:00 hrs.

Mano Ya Na Mano  – Friday’s 22:00 hrs.Rishtey – Friday’s 20:30 hrs.
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Some Of The Highly Rated Programmes
Launched During The Year
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much higher than the growth rate of the industry.

Advertising revenues in India have shown a steady

migration from the print towards the electronic

medium. Though print is still the dominant

1. There has been a slowdown in advertising

revenues during 1998-99. How was the

market scenario for the industry, in the last

year? What was the growth in advertising

spends during 1998-99?

Media spends and growth took a beating

throughout the world in the last year, mainly due

to the recession that stalked many parts of the

globe. The Indian market was no exception and

also suffered. Advertising spends  grew by 13%

in 1998-99 to Rs. 6,300 crores. This was lower

than the growth rate of 20-25% that was

witnessed in earlier years. However, the company’s

advertisement booking has increased from Rs. 297

crores in 1997-98 to Rs. 385 crores in 1998-99.

This is a distinctive growth rate of 30%, which is

Hudd Kar Di

Face To Face With Corporate Management

medium, satellite TV now accounts for about 19%

of the total advertising pie - amounting to

Rs. 1,245 crores out of the total TV pie of Rs. 2,200

crores. It should be noted that Doordarshan has

consequently lost its market share from 59% in

1997-98 to 43% during the year 1998-99.

F
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Ghar Jamai
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To sum up, though overall advertising growth has

reduced from the heady post-liberalisation days,

television, especially satellite television, continues

to register strong growth. And as befits the leader

channel in the Indian Satellite scenario, Zee

continues to set new precedents and touch

impressive figures.

Rishtey

Zee Network, on the other hand, has steadily

consolidated its presence and revenues. From

Rs. 317 crores in 1997-98, we have posted a 31%

growth to touch Rs.414 crores in 1998-99. This is

mainly due to the fact that Zee has maintained

its viewership and in fact is ahead of Star and

Sony put together, thus providing more value to

the advertiser.

Our ad revenues have also shown a steady

growth over the years and will continue to do so

in the coming years.

Zee has indeed managed to broaden and

consolidate its advertising base. It has shown a

compounded growth of 27% over the last four

years.
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2. Zee had announced the launch of regional

channels. What is the progress on that?

When are they likely to be launched? Which

channels are likely to be started first? Will

the channels be uplinked from India?

Zee has been at the forefront of offering more

choice and more quality to the viewer. In

consonance with our digitalisation plans and the

Direct-To-Operator project, we intend to launch

three regional language channels for the viewers

–  Marathi, Bengali and Punjabi.

To enhance the choice for the viewers, we intend

to source third party English channels and

regional language channels to reinforce the pay

bouquet, initially by way of DTO and later by DTH,

when permitted. The pay bouquet concept is to

exploit the company’s library of programmes and

movies in all possible modes of distribution.

We are planning to have six-hour programming

blocks with original programming, regional

language movies and dubbed Zee programmes.

Dubbing has already been completed and movie

titles have been sourced from our libraries.

Original programming is also being readied.

Manpower and equipment has been put in place

for the launch of these channels along with our

DTO service during the current year.

Your Company has already finalised  negotiations

with AsiaSat 3 for lease of transponder capacity.

We intend to create our own uplinking and

technical infrastructure, initially at Noida, within

the purview of Indian legislation.

Anhonee
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3. What is the status of the DTO project? Could

you give the details of the capital

expenditure involved? Will all the existing

channels be converted into pay mode?

World over, revenues in the television business

accrue primarily from subscription/pay streams.

In India, revenues have primarily accrued from

advertising streams. However, the subscription

revenues are too important to be ignored. There

is also a need to offer viewers better quality of

audio and video reception. With this focus in

mind, Zee has decided to switch to the digital

mode of transmission and beam directly to the

operator. Direct-To-Operator (DTO) is the

technology that enables digital and encrypted

transmission to the cable headend, which then

decodes the signal and transmits it further.  Cable

operators will be provided with a decoder, which

will allow them to receive the signals. They will

have to pay a monthly fee for the decoder, based

on the number of connections.

The DTO system enables us to charge monthly

rentals based on the number of connections. The

digital transmission ensures good reception

quality. Besides, 8-10 channels can be beamed

from one single transponder, resulting in cost

savings. Other value additions can also be offered

to the viewer from a digital platform. The DTO

system can easily be upgraded to the Direct-To-

Home system.

Teacher

Encryption and digitalisation may initially lead to

a fall in the viewership as the appropriate numbers

of decoders would have to be seeded in the

market. However, the company is taking adequate

measures to tackle this contingency. Decoder

seeding will be taken up by October 1999 and

we plan to place 25,000 decoders in three

months.

Shapath
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4. What is the competitive position of Zee

News? Could you give us some details on

how the company plans to make it profitable

in the next year?

Zee News was launched on 10 May, 1999. The

channel aims to be the trusted and reliable

information disseminator of choice for millions of

Asians. Given the lacuna of a news channel

catering exclusively to the Indian community in

particular, and the Asian community in general,

Zee News aims to fill this gap.

Zee News brings with it the coffee shop concept

of news – available to the viewer round the clock.

With a host of bureaus spread all over the world,

news will be available on the channel minute -

by - minute. Special focus on the elections and

events of interest will be maintained.

The data sourced from INTAM across Mumbai/

Delhi/Ahmedabad validates our strategy. The

channel has a 51% share of viewership among

News channels in India. Recognising this fact,

reputed companies have been advertising on the

channel. The advertisers include among others –

Nokia, Cadburys, Asian Paints, Onida, Hyundai,

Ceat, Amul, Maruti Udyog, Directorate of

Income Tax, etc.

Zee News is showing excellent prospects and will

bolster the performance of the Network further.

Newsreaders - Zee News
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5. You have announced that Zee will start

producing movies. Could you elaborate on

that please. What is the rationale behind

venturing into this business?

We at Zee have always believed in the virtues of

integration. In the TV business content is king.

More so in India, as one finds that Hindi films have

always had great entertainment value. To

augment our content and eventually exploit it to

the fullest, we have embarked on producing Hindi

movies. To begin with, a Rs.10 crore film starring

Sunny Deol called ”Gadar“ is under production.

In a gradual manner, we will also announce other

medium and big budget movies featuring the best

available talent in Indian cinema.

Zee believes that effective and proper utilisation

of any properties will yield rich dividends. This

principle will be applied to the marketing of

movies as well. Professionals will be entrusted to

manage this business. The synergies to be gained

from this exercise in vertical integration are

obviously beneficial to the Network.

We can exploit the movies through theatres,

cable, satellite, pay TV, overseas rights etc. This

will ensure that Zee earns fair returns from this

business.

Amrish Puri in a still from “Gadar”

Sunny Deol and Amisha Patel in “Gadar”



6. What is the business outlook of Siticable?

What role will SitiCable play in the ISP

project? Will Zee be implementing the ISP

project on its own?

SitiCable is India’s premier cable network covering

more than 4.3 million subscribers. It has a 60%

share of the major metro cities and covering

around 180 cities in India. Subscriber sales have

touched Rs. 18.9 crores and advertising sales have

reached Rs. 16.8 crores in 1998-99. SitiCable is

poised to touch the lives of around 1.25 million

subscribers by the year 2000.

With the advent of new technologies, SitiCable is

poised to transform itself into SitiNet – offering a

range of services such as Internet delivery, Video/

Audio, Telephony (if permitted) solutions for

business users as well as home users.

Work has already progressed on our ISP project.

We have been granted the Category ’A’ license

for our ISP service, and our strategy has been laid

out in detail for your benefit in a separate

newsletter sent to members in April 1999. We

shall provide both access and content to our

subscribers and bring the Internet with its myriad

applications within easy reach of the masses.

We envisage a total project cost of around

Rs. 400 crores; details of which are being worked

out and expected to be finalised soon. We are in

the process of putting up a state-of-the-art network

to provide better data transmission for this

purpose.

World-wide, the thrust towards cable has

intensified. You might recollect the two major

acquisitions by AT&T in the US – a $48 billion take

over of the cable giant, TCI and another $56

billion buyover of the broadband Internet

provider, MediaOne. We expect that SitiCable will

also play a similarly stellar role in India’s march

towards convergence.

7. What is the status on the consolidation

process of international entities with Zee

Telefilms Limited? Will the company

maintain its returns even after the

consolidation? By when would the process

be completed?

Zee Telefilms Ltd. proposes to acquire a 100%

interest in the international Zee entity – Zee

Multimedia Worldwide Limited.

The strategic rationale for this exercise is to take

advantage of joint strengths in marketing,

promotions and product development globally

and offer more transparency within the group,

thus increasing value for investors. Eventually, the

bigger balance sheet can be leveraged for further

expansion. Subsequently, emerging areas of

technological convergence can also be effectively

tapped on a global scale.

For ZTL shareholders, the benefits are manifold –

a chance to participate in the subscription and

advertising revenue streams of Zee UK, Zee USA

and Zee Africa and a chance to partake of global

advertising revenues as they may accrue.

Importantly, the merger will enable Zee to

consolidate its position as a global player in the

emerging media market scenario and effectively

utilise new technologies.

We are sure that the consolidation will enable Zee

to improve its returns to shareholders and will

equip us to face the emerging media scenario in

a much better way.
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All figures are in million except where specified

Year Ending March 31 1999 (audited) 1998 (audited)

Rs. US $ Rs. US $

Revenue Account

Income from Operations 2,262 54 1,734 47

Total Expenses 1,411 34 1,144 31

Operating Profit 851 20 590 16

% to Income from Operations 38% 38% 34% 34%

Other Income 55 1 75 2

PBIDT 906 21 665 18

Interest 81 2 64 2

Depreciation 18 – 15 –

Profit Before Tax 807 19 586 16

Taxation 196 5 149 4

Profit After Tax 611 14 437 12

% to Total Income 26% 26% 24% 24%

Dividend 103 3 103 3

Dividend rate 55% 55% 55% 55%

Capital Account

Share Capital-Equity 187 5 187 5

Share Capital - Preference – – 30 1

Reserves & Surplus 1,731 41 1,235 31

Loan Funds 561 13 426 11

Capital Employed 2,479 59 1,878 48

Fixed Assets 312 7 266 7

Investments 571 14 480 12

Net Current Assets 1,583 38 1,116 29

Miscellaneous Expenditure 13 – 16 –

Capital Deployed 2,479 59 1,878 48

Closing market price per share (Rs.) 987 23 273 7

Market Capitalisation 18,418 437 5,093 129

Figures in US $ are arrived at by converting Rupee figures at the average conversion rate for all items

in revenue account and at the closing rate for all items in capital account, as given below

Exchange Rate (Rs. /US $) 1998-99 1997-98

— Closing 42.1 39.5

— Average 41.9 37.2
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Following were the highlights during the year 1998-99

• The Company’s Income from Operations jumped 30% over the previous year to Rs 2,262 million.

• Total expenses grew at a lower pace and as a result operating Profit improved 44% over the previous year to

Rs. 851 million.

• Post Tax Profits improved 40% over last year to Rs. 611 million.

• The Company procured advertisement bookings worth Rs 3,853 million, a jump of around 30% over the

previous year.

• Earnings per share jumped 40% to Rs 32.7 (previous year Rs 23.4).

• The Company got the Category A license for operating ISP services on an all India basis.

• The Company was voted the ”Emerging Company of the Year“ by The Economic Times.

• Zee Telefilms took the decision of getting into broadcasting. The company is planning to launch regional

channels, which are going to be uplinked from India.

• The Employee Stock Option Plan scheme was started for key executives.

1
9

9
8

-9
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(Rs in million)

Year Ending March 31 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995

Revenue Account
Income from Operations 2,262 1,734 1,374 1,230 735
Total Expenses 1,411 1,144 940 821 436
Operating Profit 851 590 434 409 299
% to Income from Operations 38% 34% 32% 33% 41%
Other Income 55 75 64 18 18
PBIDT 906 665 498 427 317
Interest 81 64 60 27 4
Depreciation 18 15 16 15 6
Profit Before Tax 807 586 422 385 307
Taxation 196 149 75 84 85
Profit After Tax 611 437 347 301 222
% to Total Income 26% 24% 24% 24% 29%
Dividend 103 103 84 65 56
Dividend rate 55% 55% 45% 35% 30%

Capital Account
Share Capital – Equity 187 187 186 186 186
Share Capital – Preference 0 30 0 40 0
Reserves & Surplus 1,731 1,235 906 656 426
Loan Funds 561 426 333 217 42

Capital Employed 2,479 1,878 1,425 1,099 654

Fixed Assets 312 266 243 214 102
Investments 571 480 318 4 4
Net Current Assets 1,583 1,116 844 860 526
Miscellaneous Expenditure 13 16 20 21 22

Capital Deployed 2,479 1,878 1,425 1,099 654

Closing market price per share (Rs.) 987 273 88 128 215

Market capitalisation 18,418 5,093 1,636 2,380 3,996

Except for 1998 and 1999 all figures are unaudited net consolidated results (inclusive of the erstwhile
ASSL). This is to allow a meaningful comparison.
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Year Ending March 31 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995

Financial Performance

Operating Profit/Income from Operations (%) 37.6 34.0 31.6 33.3 40.7

Other Income/Total Income (%) 2.4 4.2 4.5 1.5 2.4

Programming cost/Income from Operations (%) 46.7 45.2 50.7 53.7 46.5

Personnel Cost/Income from Operations (%) 4.7 5.3 4.0 2.8 2.3

Administration Expenses/Income from Operations (%) 11.0 15.5 13.7 10.2 10.5

Total operating cost/Income from operations (%) 62.4 66.0 68.4 66.7 59.3

Interest cost/Income from Operations (%) 3.6 3.7 4.3 2.2 0.6

Tax/Income from Operations (%) 8.6 8.6 5.4 6.8 11.5

PAT/Total Income (%) 26.4 24.2 24.1 24.1 29.5

Tax/PBT (%) 24.2 25.4 17.6 21.9 27.6

Dividend Payout/PAT (%) 16.8 23.5 24.2 21.7 25.2

Dividend Payout/Networth (%) 5.4 7.3 7.8 8.0 9.5

Balance Sheet

Debt-Equity Ratio (Total loans/Networth) (%) 29.4 30.3 31.0 26.5 7.1

Current Ratio (current assets/current liabilities) (X) 3.0 2.1 1.8 2.1 1.8

Capital Output Ratio (Inc from Ops/capital employed) (X) 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1

Fixed Assets Turnover (Inc from Ops/Fixed assets) (X) 7.3 6.5 5.7 5.8 7.2

RONW (PAT/Networth) (%) 32.1 31.1 32.4 36.7 37.7

ROCE (PBIT/capital employed) (%) 35.8 34.6 33.8 37.5 47.6

Growth Ratios

Income from Operations (%) 30.4 26.2 11.7 67.4 —

Total Expenses (%) 23.4 21.7 14.5 88.3 —

Operating Profit (%) 44.2 35.9 6.2 36.8 —

Net Profit (%) 39.9 25.8 15.3 35.6 —

Per Share Data

Revenue per share (Rs.) 124.1 96.9 77.3 67.1 40.5

Earnings per share (Rs.) 32.7 23.4 18.7 16.2 12.0

Dividend per share (Rs.) 5.5 5.5 4.5 3.5 3.0

Indebtedness per share (Rs.) 30.1 22.9 17.9 11.7 2.2

Book Value per share (Rs.) 102.1 75.3 57.7 44.1 31.7

Price/EPS Ratio (X) 30.1 11.7 4.7 7.9 18.0

Except for 1998 and 1999, all figures are unaudited net consolidated results (inclusive of the erstwhile

ASSL). This is to allow a meaningful comparison.
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The Company has continued its commitment to create

programming capabilities by enhancing its in-house

production facilities, particularly for production of news

and current affairs programmes. The Company is shortly

planning to launch many regional language channels.

During the year under review your Company has

obtained “A” category license for providing Internet

services in India.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has stopped accepting/renewing the

Fixed Deposits w.e.f. 10th November, 1997. The

Company has honoured all of its commitments to the

depositors during the period under review.

To,

The Members

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the

Seventeenth Annual Report of the Company for the

year ended 31st March, 1999.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

( Rs. in lacs)

For the Year Ended March 31, 1999 1998

Sales & Services 22,618 17,339

Dividend Income 12 12

Other Income 544 740

Total Income 23,174 18,091

Total Expenses 15,105 12,233

Profit Before Tax 8,069 5,858

Provision for Taxation 1,955 1,489

Profit after Tax 6,114 4,369

Appropriations :

Dividend :

On Preference Shares 26 13

On Equity Shares 1,027 1,027

Corporate Dividend Tax 106 144

General Reserve 1,500 1,500

Capital Redemption Reserve 300 —

Balance carried forward 3,155 1,685

DIVIDEND

Your Directors are pleased to recommend final dividend

@ Rs. 5.50 per Equity Share amounting to Rs. 1,027

Lacs for the financial year 1998-99.

OPERATIONS

During the year, your Company has recorded 30%

increase in its total revenue which grew to Rs.22,618

lacs from Rs.17,339 lacs in the previous year. Net Profit

has increased from Rs.4,369 lacs to Rs.6,114 lacs,

recording an increase of 40%.
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ALLOTMENT OF EQUITY SHARES UNDER

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME

As intimated in the last year’s Directors’ Report, 7,46,880

Convertible Warrants were allotted under Employees

Stock Option Scheme to Zee Network Employees’

Welfare Trust. Each warrant was convertible into one

Equity Share of Rs.10/- each at a premium of Rs.202/-.

Zee Network Employees Welfare Trust, on the advice

of ESOP Committee, has granted option representing

4,29,400 warrants to employees of the Company and

on the other, thus proving itself to be true corporate

citizen of the coming digital era.

It is in this context that the Company wishes to enlarge

the scope of its business so as to make the best and

most profitable use of technology to distribute its

programmes and properties all over the world through

all possible permutations and  combinations and in

the process to maximize consumer satisfaction and

profits in the ultimate analysis.

PROPOSED ACQUISITION OF ZMWL

The Company is planning to acquire 100% interest in

Zee Multimedia Worldwide Limited (ZMWL), subject

to receipt of statutory and shareholder approvals.

ZMWL owns and operates entertainment channels in

Europe, USA and Africa. It also owns 50% interest in

Asia Today Limited. This will allow the Company to

capitalise on the growing popularity of Zee brand

across the world.

DIRECTORS

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies

Act, 1956, and the Articles of Association of the

Company, Mr. Laxmi Narain Goel and Mr. Vasant S.

Parekh retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General

28,000 warrants to employees of associate companies.

These warrants are convertible into equivalent number

of equity shares on exercise of option by holder of

warrants. These equity shares will be subject to such

lock in period as prescribed under ESOP scheme framed

by the Company.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

To march into the new millennium it has become

imperative that the Company rides on the technological

waves and enlarge the scope of its business by

harnessing strategies that are in line with these new

technological paradigms, on one hand, and by

exploiting media properties in all forms of distribution,
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Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for

reappointment.

AUDITORS

M/s. M.G. Bhandari & Co., Chartered Accountants,

Mumbai, the statutory auditors of the Company retire

and, are eligible for reappointment. The observations

and the comments made in the Auditors’ Report are

self-explanatory.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO

SECTION 217(1)(e)

Information pursuant to Section 217(1)(e) of the

Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies

(Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of

Directors) Rules, 1988, relating to the Conservation of

Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange

Earnings and Outgo is annexed herewith.

PERSONNEL

Your Directors place on record their appreciation of

the contribution made by the employees at all levels

who, through their competence, diligence, solidarity,

co-operation and support, have enabled the Company

to achieve phenomenal growth during the year.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The particulars as required under the provisions of

Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with

the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report

of Board of Directors ) Rules, 1988, are set out in the

Annexure included in this Report.

STATUS ON Y2K PREPAREDNESS

a) The Company does not face any risk on year 2000

issues. The computer software being utilized in

the Company for commercial booking, sales

accounting, financial accounting and payroll are

Y2K compliant.

b) The expenditure incurred on the Y2K project is

negligible due to in-house development of

software.

c) The Company does not foresee any problem,

however adequate contingency plans have been

formulated for meeting any exigency.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Company is grateful to its customers, vendors,

investors, financial institutions and bankers for their

continued support to your Company’s growth.

Your Directors also wish to place on record their thanks

to the Government of India particularly, the Department

of Electronics, the Customs Department, the Software

Technology & Export Promotion Council, the Ministry

of Information & Broadcasting, the Ministry of

Commerce, RBI, VSNL, the Department of

Telecommunications, the State Government and other

Government agencies for all the help extended during

the year, and look forward to their continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place : Mumbai Subhash Chandra

Date : 20th May, 1999 Chairman
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Sr. Name Age Dsgn. Remuneration Qualification Experience Date of Com- Last
No. Total (Years) mencement of Employment

Rs. Employment

1 Mr. Ajit Gupta 44 G.M.- Programming 227,533+  B.A. (Hons.) 23 01.02.99 Directorate

(Commercial) of Film Festivals

2 Mr. Alok Verma 39 Editor 663,756 B.A., LLB., PGDBM 17 07.01.97 Anand Bazar Patrika Ltd.

3 Mr. Bhaskar Majumdar 32 V.P. - Corporate 451,530+ B.Tech., MBA 9 01.08.96 Data Line Asia

Pacific, Hongkong

4 Mr. D.K. Pandey 49 Sr. Vice President 694,025 B.Tech., MBA 25 01.07.97 Siticable Network Ltd.

5 Mr. Hitesh Vakil 38 Sr. V.P.- Finance 978,679 B.Com., ACA 16 01.04.96 Tips & Toes Cosmetics (I) Ltd.

6 Ms. Kanta Advani 40 V.P. - Sales 863,221 B.A., DMM, DMS 18 19.03.96 Bennett, Coleman & Co. Ltd.

7 Mr. M.B. Zaidi 44 Associate Vice President- 156,300+ B.A., L.L.B. 19 01.01.99 Essar Investments Limited

Corporate Affairs

8 Ms. Monica Dalton 38 V.P. - Sales 965,301 B.Sc.,DFM,Diploma in 14 01.04.94 National Institute

Advt. & Mktg. for Computer Education

9 Mr. Mubin Khan 31 Sr. Assistant 950,223 B.Sc., PG Diploma in 8 01.01.96 Contract Advtg. (I) Limited

Vice President-Sales Advt. & P.R.

10 Mr. P.C. Lahiri 46 V.P.- Corporate 911,772 B.Sc., LLB. 23 01.05.95 Essel International Ltd.

Affairs

11 Mr. Partho Ghosh 45 Sr. V.P.- Sales 1,146,796 M.Sc., MBA 24 01.03.97 Rama Associates Limited

12 Mr. Rahul Kalia 43 Sr. V.P.- Marketing 1,854,341 B.E. (Electronics), MBA 18 11.03.96 Lintas (I) Limited

13 Mr. Rajesh Mishra 34 G.M.- Legal & 793,847+ B.Com., A.C.A. 11 01.04.97 Nasir Hussain

Commercial Films P. Ltd.

14 Mr. Raju Santhanam 47 Executive Editor 1,316,172 B.A. 27 01.02.97 The Statesman Ltd.

15 Mr. Ranjan Bakshi 42 V.P.- Corporate 535,171+ M.A. 19 04.07.98 Living Media (I) Ltd.

 Communications

16 Mr. Sainath Iyer 44 Vice President 880,508 B.Sc. 21 01.09.95 Lintas (I) Ltd.

17 Mr. Shailesh Kumar 41 Editor 687,516 Bachelor of Journalism 20 18.01.97 TV Today Ltd.

& Mass Communication

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION GIVEN AS REQUIRED UNDER THE COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS IN THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF

DIRECTORS) RULES, 1988

I. INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 217(2A)(B)(II) READ WITH COMPANIES (PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES)
RULES, 1975 AND FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 1999
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Sr. Name Age Dsgn. Remuneration Qualification Experience Date of Com- Last
No. Total (Years) mencement of Employment

Rs. Employment

18 Mr. Sikander Bhasin 43 Vice President 1,413,096 B.Com. (Hons)., 23 01.06.96 Doordarshan

Diploma in Broadcast

& Journalism

19 Mr. Vijay Jindal 42 Managing Director 4,582,800 B.Sc., MBA 18 23.05.96 Bennett, Coleman & Co. Ltd.

20 Mr. Vijay Sampath 33 G.M.- Marketing 642,549 B.Sc., BGDM 11 05.07.95 Blow Plast Ltd.

21 Mr. Vishnu Patel 42 V.P.- Programming 1,227,839+ Dip. in Computerised 18 01.08.96 Star Movies

Editing, M.S. in

Broadcasting & Film &
Dipl. in Architecture

Notes : 1. Appointment is contractual and terminable by notice on either side.
2. None of the employees is related to any of the Directors.
3. Remuneration includes Salary, Provident Fund, Medical Benefits, Leave

Travel Allowance, Accommodation & Other Taxable Perquisites.
+ Indicates remuneration is for part of the year.

II. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO :

For the year ending March 31,
Rs. in lacs

1999 1998

(A) Total foreign exchange earned : 15187 10522
(B) Total foreign exchange used :

(i) On import of raw materials and capital goods 260 32
(ii) Expenditure in foreign currencies for travel, subscription, etc. 170 108

III. ENERGY CONSERVATION, RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION :
Considering the nature of the business of this Company, the particulars required under this clause are not applicable.

For and on behalf  of the Board

SUBHASH CHANDRA
Mumbai : 20th May, 1999 Chairman
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To,

The Members of

Zee Telefilms Limited

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Zee

Telefilms Limited as at 31st March, 1999 and also the

Profit and Loss Account of the Company for the year

ended on that date, annexed thereto, and report that :

1. As required by Manufacturing and Other

Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,1988 issued

by the Company Law Board in terms of Section

227(4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, and on the

basis of such checks as we considered

appropriate, and according to the information

and explanations given to us during the course

of audit, we annex hereto a statement on the

matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the

said Order.

2. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred

to in paragraph (1) above :

a) We have obtained all the information and

explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief, were necessary for

the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion proper books of account have

been maintained by the Company as

required by law so far as appears from our

examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss

Account dealt with by this report are in

agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion the Profit and Loss Account

and the Balance Sheet complied with the

mandatory Accounting Standards referred

to in sub-section 3C of Section 211 of the

Companies Act,1956.

e) In our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the

explanations given to us the accounts

subject to Note No .8 regarding provision

for taxation - the Profits for the year would

be lower by Rs./Lacs 888.89 (889.00) and

Reserves and Provisions will be affected by

Rs./Lacs 6958 (5747)

read together with accounting policies and

other notes as per Schedule 18 give the

information required by the Companies Act,

1956, in the manner so required and give a

true and fair view :

I. In the case of Balance Sheet of the state

of affairs of the Company as at 31st

March, 1999;  and

II. In the case of Profit and Loss Account

of the Profit for the year ended on that

date.

For M.G. Bhandari & Co.

Chartered Accountants

M.G. Bhandari

Partner

Place : Mumbai

Date : 20th May, 1999
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Annexure referred to in paragraph (1) of Auditors’

Report to the members of Zee Telefilms Limited on

the Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 1999.

1. The Company has maintained proper records

showing full particulars including quantitative

details, and situation of its fixed assets. The fixed

assets of the Company have been physically

verified by the management during the year, and

no material discrepancies are noticed on such

verification.

2. None of the fixed assets have been revalued

during the year.

3. As explained to us, Stock of Raw Stocks (Tapes,

Cassettes, Paper, etc.), Television Programmes

(except films/programme rights and programmes

under production) and finished goods at all

locations have been physically verified by the

management during the year except stocks lying

with third parties, in respect of which

confirmations have been obtained in most cases.

4. In our opinion, the procedures of physical

verification of stocks followed by the management

are reasonable and adequate in relation to the

size of the Company and the nature of its business.

5. Discrepancies noticed on physical verification of

stocks as compared to book records which are

not significant have been properly dealt with in

the books of account.

6. In our opinion, the valuation of stocks is fair and

proper in accordance with the normally accepted

accounting principles and is on the same basis as

in the preceding year.

7. In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms

and conditions of unsecured loans taken from

companies, listed in the register maintained under

Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 are prima

facie not prejudicial to the interest of the

Company. No loans are taken from companies

under the same management as defined under

sub-section (1B) of  Section 370 of the Companies

Act, 1956.

8. In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms

and conditions of unsecured loans granted to

companies listed in the register maintained under

Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 are prima

facie not prejudicial to the interest of the Company

except interest free loan of Rs./Lacs

1054.93(1052.04) to Siticable Network Ltd. in

which the Company is one of the major

shareholders. No loans are granted to companies

under the same management as defined under

sub-section (1B) of Section 370 of the Companies

Act, 1956.

9. The parties (including employees) to whom loans

and advances in the nature of loans have been

given are generally regular in repaying the

principal amount as stipulated or rescheduled and

interest wherever applicable except Rs. 25.55 Lacs

for which we are informed that the Company is

taking reasonable steps for recovery of the

principal and interest.

10. In our opinion, there are adequate internal control

procedures commensurate with the size of the

Company and nature of it’s business for the

purchase of goods, programmes, fi lms/

programme rights, merchandise, plant and

machinery, equipments and other assets, and for

the sale of goods, programmes and films/

programme rights.

11. The sale of programmes and films/ programme

rights and sale of services made in pursuance to

the contracts or arrangements entered in the

register maintained under Section 301 of the

Companies Act, 1956 and aggregating during

the year to Rs. 50,000 or more in value in respect
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of each party are explained to have been done

at reasonable prices and terms but looking to the

nature of business the market/comparable prices

are not available. There are no such transactions

of purchases.

12. According to information and explanations given

to us, the Company has a system of determining

unserviceable or damaged stock on the basis of

technical evaluation and on such basis, stocks are

written down by an amount of Rs. 383.92 Lacs.

13. The Company has accepted deposits from the

public and as per the information and

explanations given to us, the Company has

complied with the provisions of Section 58 A of

the Companies Act,1956 and the Companies

(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules , 1975.

14. As explained to us, the activities of the Company

does not generate any realisable scrap or by-

product.

15 In our opinion, the Company has adequate

internal audit system commensurate with its size

and nature of business.

16. We are informed that the Central Government

has not prescribed the maintenance of cost

accounting records under Section 209 (1) (d) of

the Companies Act,1956 in respect of Company’s

products.

17. According to the records of the Company the

contribution to Provident Fund and Employees’

State Insurance dues have been regularly

deposited with the appropriate authorities.

18. On the basis of examination of the records and

according to the information and explanations

given to us, there are no undisputed amounts

payable in respect of Income Tax, Sales Tax,

Customs Duty and other duties, cess or taxes

which have remained outstanding as at 31st

March, 1999 for a period of more than six months

from the date they became payable.

19. According to the information and explanations

given to us, no personal expenses have been

charged to Profit and Loss Account, other than

those payable under the contractual obligations

or in accordance with generally accepted business

practices.

20. The Company is not a sick industrial Company

within the meaning of clause (O) of sub-section

(1) of Section 3 of the Sick Industrial Companies

(Special Provisions) Act ,1985.

21. The Company’s service activities which mainly

include commission earned, production services,

etc. are such that it does not involve any receipts,

issues and consumption of materials and stores

and hence the question of allocating materials

consumed and also manhours used to the relative

jobs does not arise. As explained to us in respect

of its service activities the Company has adequate

internal control system commensurate with the

size of the Company and nature of its service

activities.

22. In respect of trading activities of the Company,

unserviceable films/programmes are identified on

technical evaluation and adequate provision is

made for the loss.

For M.G. Bhandari & Co.

Chartered Accountants

M.G. Bhandari

Partner

Place : Mumbai

Date : 20th May,1999
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As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For and on behalf of

M.G. BHANDARI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Vijay Jindal Managing Director
M.G. Bhandari
Partner Ashok Kurien Director

Place : Mumbai Vikas Gupta Company Secretary
Date : 20th May, 1999

Rs. in lacs

Schedule 1999 1998

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Share Capital 1 1,866.51 2,166.34
Reserves & Surplus 2 17,300.76 12,345.50

19,167.27 14,511.84
SHARE APPLICATION MONEY 3 15.90 —

LOAN FUNDS
Secured Loans 4 5,010.84 2,290.34
Unsecured Loans 5 595.86 1,974.95

5,606.70 4,265.29

TOTAL 24,789.87 18,777.13

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS 6
Gross Block (at cost ) 3,645.02 3,013.50
Less : Depreciation Up-to-date 595.80 426.51

Net Block 3,049.22 2,586.99
Add : Capital Work-in-progress 68.90 73.79

3,118.12 2,660.78

INVESTMENTS (at cost) 7 5,711.61 4,800.39

CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS
AND ADVANCES 8
Inventories 3,582.36 2,580.41
Sundry Debtors 9,862.65 7,425.21
Cash & Bank Balances 1,792.85 4,930.52
Loans & Advances 8,687.62 6,520.81

23,925.48 21,456.95
Less :
CURRENT LIABILITIES AND
PROVISIONS
Current Liabilities 9 6,797.68 8,820.45
Provisions 10 1,294.20 1,477.85

8,091.88 10,298.30

NET CURRENT ASSETS 15,833.60 11,158.65

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE 11 126.54 157.31

TOTAL 24,789.87 18,777.13

Significant Accounting Policies and
Notes on Accounts 18

Balance Sheet as at March 31,
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As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For and on behalf of

M.G. BHANDARI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Vijay Jindal Managing Director
M.G. Bhandari
Partner Ashok Kurien Director

Place : Mumbai Vikas Gupta Company Secretary
Date : 20th May,1999

Rs. in lacs

Schedule 1999 1998

INCOME

Sales & Services 12 22,617.64 17,339.39
Other Income 13 555.98 751.23

TOTAL 23,173.62 18,090.62

EXPENDITURE

Cost of Goods 14 10,554.27 7,844.39
Personnel Cost 15 1,070.02 913.02
Administrative and Other Expenses 16 2,487.16 2,679.95

TOTAL 14,111.45 11,437.36

OPERATING PROFIT (PBIDT) 9,062.17 6,653.26

Financial Expenses 17 809.32 643.83
Depreciation 184.25 151.86

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (PBT) 8,068.60 5,857.57

Provision for Taxation [Including Rs.7.50 Lacs for Wealth Tax] 1,955.00 1,488.62

PROFIT AFTER TAX (PAT) 6,113.60 4,368.95

Balance brought forward 4,340.72 1,368.47
Balance taken on Amalgamation — 1,286.83

Amount Available For Appropriation 10,454.32 7,024.25

APPROPRIATIONS

Dividend :
On Preference Shares (Paid) 26.39 12.61
On Equity Shares (Proposed)

Interim — 1,026.96
Final 1,026.96 —

Tax on Dividends 105.33 143.96
General Reserve 1,500.00 1,500.00
Capital Redemption Reserve 300.00 —
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 7,495.64 4,340.72

10,454.32 7,024.25

Significant Accounting Policies and
Notes on Accounts 18

Profit and Loss Account For the year Ending March 31,
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Schedules to the Balance Sheet as at March 31,

SCHEDULE 1

SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED

5,00,00,000 (2,50,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 5,000.00 2,500.00

25,00,000 Cumulative Redeemable Preference

Shares of Rs.100/- each 2,500.00 2,500.00

7,500.00 5,000.00

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP

1,86,72,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 1,867.20 1,867.20

Less : Calls in arrears (others) 0.69 0.86

1,866.51 1,866.34

Nil (3,00,000) 13% Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable

Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each fully paid up

(Redeemed on 04.12.1998) — 300.00

TOTAL 1,866.51 2,166.34

SCHEDULE 2

RESERVES & SURPLUS

Capital Redemption Reserve

Balance as per last Balance Sheet 400.00 400.00

Appropriated during the year 300.00 —

700.00 400.00

Share Premium

Balance as per last Balance Sheet 1,798.28 1,784.66

Received during the year 0.34 13.62

1,798.62 1,798.28

General Reserve

Balance as per last Balance Sheet 5,806.50 4,000.00

Addition on Amalgamation — 306.50

Appropriated during the year 1,500.00 1,500.00

7,306.50 5,806.50

Profit & Loss Account 7,495.64 4,340.72

TOTAL 17,300.76 12,345.50

Rs.  in lacs

1999 1998
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Schedules to the Balance Sheet as at March 31,

Rs. in lacs

1999 1998

SCHEDULE 3

SHARE APPLICATION MONEY

Share Application Money 15.90 —

(Amount received against 75,000 Preferential Warrants

@21.20 per warrant, out of 7,46,880 warrants allotted to

Zee Network Employees’ Welfare Trust.)

TOTAL 15.90 —

SCHEDULE 4

SECURED LOANS

Working Capital Finance From Banks

a) Secured by hypothecation of Stocks (other than Film Rights), 3,305.25 1,870.77

Book Debts  (other than Space Selling), charge on Immovable

properties at Noida and second charge on  Immovable

properties at Marol, Mumbai all ranking pari passu with other

Financing banks. Second charge on Debtors pertaining to

Space Selling Division of the Company for Cash Credit Facility

from a Bank. Balance in Cash Credit Account, however,

as on 31.03.99 is Rs. Nil.

b) Secured by way of pledge of Fixed Deposits with Banks. 194.27 —

Term Loan From Financial Institutions 1,500.00 —

Secured by way of first charge on immovable properties at

Marol, Mumbai, with plant & machineries, equipments

and other movables thereat and negative lien on

Debtors pertaining to Space Selling division of

the Company and lien on Film Rights.

(Due within one year Rs. 500 Lacs.)

From SBI Factors and Commercial Services Pvt. Ltd. — 399.35

Secured by hypothecation of Book Debts &  equitable

mortgage on certain immovable property.

Hire Purchase Finance 11.32 20.22

Secured against the hypothecation of vehicles, the

charge u/s 124 of Companies Act is not registered.

TOTAL 5,010.84 2,290.34
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Schedules to the Balance Sheet as at March 31,

Rs.in lacs

1999 1998

SCHEDULE 5

UNSECURED LOANS

Fixed Deposits

— From Public 265.05 987.61

— Interest Accrued And Due — 36.26

Nil (2,00,000) 15.5% Unsecured Redeemable Non-convertible

Debentures of Rs.100/- each fully paid up Privately

Placed (Redeemed on  10.12.1998) — 200.00

3,00,000 13% Unsecured Redeemable

Non-convertible Debentures 300.00 300.00

of Rs.100/- each fully paid up Privately Placed

(Rolled over to 24.05.1999 with Put

and  Call option exercisable after six months)

Short Term Loans

— From Bank — 398.46

— From Others 30.81 52.62

TOTAL 595.86 1,974.95

SCHEDULE 6

FIXED ASSETS

Gross Block Depreciation Net Block

Description As at Additions As at Upto For the year Upto As at As at
1.4.98 (Deductions) 31.3.99 31.3.98 (Deductions) 31.3.99 31.3.99 31.3.98

Land (Leasehold) 68.93 — 68.93 1.07 0.71 1.78 67.15 67.86

Buildings 1,094.96 27.57 1,122.53 27.09 17.85 44.94 1,077.59 1,067.87

Plant & Machinery 891.62 340.72 1,232.34 145.27 63.09 208.36 1,023.98 746.35

Office Equipments 568.85 222.25 774.47 139.62 68.80 199.43 575.04 429.23
(16.63) (8.99)

Furniture & Fixtures 246.45 47.68 294.13 84.52 19.62 104.14 189.99 161.93

Vehicles 142.69 23.37 152.62 28.94 14.18 37.15 115.47 113.75
(13.44) (5.97)

TOTAL 3,013.50 661.59 3,645.02 426.51 184.25 595.80 3,049.22 2,586.99
(30.07) (14.96)

Previous year 1,441.52 1,614.40 3,013.50 163.11 276.37 426.51 2,586.99 —
(42.42) (12.97)

Building includes Rs.250/- being the value of shares in a co-operative society. These shares are yet to be registered with the
society.
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Schedules to the Balance Sheet as at March 31,

Rs. in lacs

1999 1998

SCHEDULE 7

INVESTMENTS (at cost)

Quoted

2,25,000 (2,25,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up
of Essel Packaging Ltd. [(Market Value Rs./Lacs 618.53 (405.00)] 15.00 15.00

NIL (1,72,100) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up of
Aypee Lamitubes Ltd. [(Market Value Rs./Lacs NIL (17.21)] — 17.21

15.00 32.21
Unquoted - Trade

25,45,454 (23,63,634) Equity Shares of Siti Cable Network Ltd.
of Rs 10/- each fully paid up (Substantial Holdings) 3,513.46 2,600.00

2,15,00,000(2,15,00,000) 14% Redeemable Non-Cumulative
Preference Shares of Siti Cable Network Ltd of
Rs.10/- each fully paid up 2,156.50 2,156.50

1,73,550 (83,304) Equity Shares of Programme Asia
Trading Company Pvt. Ltd. of Rs.10/- each fully paid up (Substantial Holdings) 23.30 8.33

12,000 (12000) Equity Shares of Nagpur Cable Vision Private Ltd.
of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 1.20 1.20

Unquoted - Non - Trade
National Savings Certificate VIII issue 0.15 0.15

200 (200) Floating Rate Interest Bonds of State Bank of India
of Rs.1000/- each fully paid up 2.00 2.00

5,696.61 4,768.18

TOTAL 5,711.61 4,800.39

SCHEDULE 8

CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES

A. CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Inventories
(as taken,valued and certified by the Management)
Raw Stocks 53.44 63.30
Under Production – Television Programmes 402.46 53.79

– Course/Study Materials — 22.03
–  Films 108.98 —

Finished Goods – Television Programmes 936.08 909.27
– Films/Programmes Rights 1,981.55 1,455.24
– Audio Tapes 70.66 68.58
– Course/Study Materials 29.19 8.20

3,582.36 2,580.41
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Schedules to the Balance Sheet as at March 31,

Rs. in lacs

1999 1998

(b) Sundry Debtors
(Unsecured and Considered Good unless otherwise specified)
Debts outstanding for more than six months :
Considered Good 1,792.35 547.30
Considered Doubtful 15.00 15.00

1,807.35 562.30

Other Debts :
Considered Good 8,070.30 6,877.91

9,877.65 7,440.21

Less : Provision For Doubtful Debts 15.00 15.00

9,862.65 7,425.21
(c) Cash & Bank Balances

Cash in hand 29.93 20.74
Balance with Scheduled Banks in Current Accounts 1,325.25 3,783.58
Balance with Non-Scheduled Banks in Current Accounts* 0.04 —
Balance with Scheduled Banks in Fixed Deposits 239.25 1,091.44
Remittance in Transit 198.38 34.76

1,792.85 4,930.52
* Maximum balance held at any time during the year Rs. .04 Lacs

B. LOANS & ADVANCES
(Unsecured and considered good)

(a) Loans 2,487.71 2,547.46

(b) Advances (Recoverable in cash or in kind
or for value to be received)
Trade Advances 4,487.35 2,620.52
Tax advances 795.18 248.49

(c) Deposits 917.38 1,104.34

8687.62 6,520.81

TOTAL 23925.48 21,456.95

SCHEDULE 9

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Sundry Creditors – For Goods 1,627.12 1,210.87
– For Other Liabilities 725.43 804.54

Trade Advances/Deposits received 259.25 342.15
Amount Collected from Advertisers
(For Remittance, pending RBI approval) 4,104.01 6,428.90
Unclaimed Dividend 39.53 22.72
Interest accrued but not due 42.34 11.27

TOTAL 6797.68 8,820.45
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Schedules to the Balance Sheet as at March 31,

Rs. in lacs

1999 1998

SCHEDULE 10

PROVISIONS

Provision For – Taxation (Net of Advances) 84.80 289.08
– Gratuity 29.71 17.03
– Leave Encashment 50.03 42.08

Proposed Dividend 1,026.96 1,026.96
Tax on Dividend 102.70 102.70

TOTAL 1,294.20 1,477.85

SCHEDULE 11

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)

Share Issue Expenses 126.54 157.31

TOTAL 126.54 157.31
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SCHEDULE 12

SALES & SERVICES

Sales – Products 17,133.44 12,551.92
– Services 5,484.20 4,787.47

TOTAL 22,617.64 17,339.39

SCHEDULE 13

OTHER INCOME

Dividend Income (Gross) [T.D.S. Rs./Lacs Nil (1.39)] 11.96 11.39
Export Benefits realised 10.42 286.26
Interest Income (Gross) [T.D.S. Rs./Lacs 76.86 (79.32)] 404.37 311.25
Miscellaneous Income 61.77 80.38
Rent Income [T.D.S. Rs./Lacs 8.59 (3.56)] 57.13 61.95
Profit on Sale of Investments 10.33 —

TOTAL 555.98 751.23

SCHEDULE 14

COST OF GOODS

OPENING STOCK
Raw Stocks 63.30 128.39
Under Production – Television Programmes 53.79 47.06

– Course/Study Materials 22.03 —
Finished Goods – Television Programmes 909.27 781.21

– Films/Programmes Rights 1,455.24 1,068.46
– Audio Tapes 68.58 87.19
– Course/Study Materials 8.20 —

2,580.41 2,112.31
ADD : PRODUCTION EXPENSES/ACQUISITION COST

Raw Stocks 360.95 251.09
Productions – Television Programmes/Films 7,963.39 5,385.98

– Audio Tapes 67.31 20.10
– Course/Study Materials 416.36 270.18
– Publication Expenses 23.48 15.77

Acquisitions – Audio Tapes 127.41 205.99
– Films/Programmes Rights 2,597.32 2,163.38

11,556.22 8,312.49
LESS : CLOSING STOCK

Raw Stocks 53.44 63.30
Under Production – Television Programmes 402.46 53.79

– Course/Study Materials — 22.03
– Film 108.98 —

Finished Goods – Television Programmes 936.08 909.27
– Films/Programmes Rights 1,981.55 1,455.24
– Audio Tapes 70.66 68.58
– Course/Study Materials 29.19 8.20

3,582.36 2,580.41

TOTAL 10,554.27 7,844.39

Schedules to the Profit and Loss Account
for the year ending March 31,

Rs. in lacs

1999 1998
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Rs. in lacs

1999 1998

SCHEDULE 15

PERSONNEL COST

Salaries, Allowances & Bonus 951.55 816.43
Contribution to PF & Other funds 73.06 54.58
Staff Welfare Expenses 45.41 42.01

TOTAL 1,070.02 913.02

SCHEDULE 16

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER EXPENSES

Rent 78.65 98.84
Lease Rentals 93.58 100.97
Rates & Taxes 23.22 19.49
Repairs & Maintenance  –  Building 12.76 45.09
Repairs & Maintenance  –  Plant & Machinery 11.66 69.48
Repairs & Maintenance  –  Others 101.16 96.22
Insurance 16.40 12.78
Electricity/Water Charges 107.45 95.76
Freight and Forwarding 34.70 48.63
Fees & Subscription 9.10 21.37
Communication Expenses 399.23 293.39
Printing & Stationary 139.38 109.59
Sundry Expenses [Including Rs.35.34 Lacs(Net) for Previous Year] 222.46 171.71
Conveyance Expenses 114.29 97.29
Vehicle Expenses 81.21 74.82
Travelling Expenses [Including Directors’ Rs./Lacs 47.59(47.80)] 256.34 210.58
Legal, Professional & Consultancy Charges 247.14 241.41
Auditors’ Remuneration 8.92 8.35
Business Promotion Expenses 175.19 215.11
Advertisement & Publicity Expenses 204.08 317.80
Donation 9.44 0.19
Provision For Doubtful Debts — 5.00
Bad Debts (Sundry Debtors & Advances) 54.99 233.53
Commission on Sales 45.50 38.93
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 9.53 6.44
Share Issue Expenses Written off 30.78 30.78
Deferred Revenue Expenditure Written off — 16.40

TOTAL 2,487.16 2,679.95

SCHEDULE 17

FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Interest on – Debentures 57.99 55.09
– Fixed Deposits 85.50 96.86
– Term Loan 150.69 —
– Others 47.20 60.74

Discounting & Bank charges 360.27 384.80
Financing Expenses 107.67 46.34

TOTAL 809.32 643.83

Schedules to the Profit and Loss Account
for the year ending March 31,
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SCHEDULE 18

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

A. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Accounting Convention
(i) The Financial Statements have been prepared under Historical Cost Convention on going concern basis.

(ii) The Company generally follows mercantile system of accounting and recognises income and expenditure

on accrual basis except those with significant uncertainties.

2. Fixed Assets
(i) Fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Cost comprises of purchase price and any attributable cost

of bringing the asset to its  working condition for its intended use.

(ii) The expenditure incurred during construction or installation is charged to capital work in progress and on

completion the costs are allocated to the respective fixed assets.

3. Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on the Straight Line Method in the manner laid down in Schedule XIV of the Companies

Act, 1956. Leasehold Land is amortised over its lease period.

4. Investments
Long term investments are stated at cost. Any decline in their value other than temporary is charged to Profit and

Loss Account.

5. Transactions in Foreign Currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies, to the extent not covered by forward contracts are accounted at prevailing

rates. Current assets and current liabilities in foreign currencies are realigned with the rates of exchange ruling on

Balance Sheet date. Gain/Loss arising on realignment is accounted for in the Profit and Loss Account.

6. Revenue Recognition
(i) Sale is recognised on despatch of goods to customers.

(ii) For services revenue is recognised when the service is completed.

(iii) For advertisements, the commission is recognised, when the related advertisement or commercial appears

before the public i.e. telecast.

(iv) Fees are recognised over the period of instructions.

(v) Television Programmes production expenses are net of recoveries.

7. Miscellaneous Expenditure
Share issue expenses are amortised @ 10% for every financial year.

8. Inventories
Inventories are valued as under :-

i. Raw Stock : at cost

ii. Under Production : at cost

1) Television Programmes

2) Films

3) Study Material

iii. Finished Goods -

1) Television Programmes* : lower of cost or estimated realisable value

* For exploited programmes realisable value is estimated as under :

(a) Once Exploited 10 % of cost

(b) Second exploitation Nil

(c) Once exploited but perishable Nil

(i.e News, event based, current affairs, chat show, etc.)
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2) Films/Programme Rights (Audio/Video, etc.)  :

(a) Singular : lower of cost or net realisable value

(b) Multiple : lower  of  unrecouped  cost

(cost incurred as reduced to the

extent of revenue recognised )

or net realisable value.

3) Audio Tapes, Study Materials : at lower of cost or net realisable value

9. Retirement Benefits

a) Contribution to Provident Fund and other recognised Funds are charged to Profit and Loss Account.

b) Leave encashment is provided in terms of contractual obligations as per Company’s Rules.

c) Gratuity Liability is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation.

B. NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

As at As at

31st March,1999 31st March,1998

Rs./lacs Rs./lacs

1. Contingent liabilities not provided for :

(a) Guarantees given for loans granted to other Companies 500.00 1,000.00

(b) Other guarantees 433.36 90.53

(c) Disputed income tax demand 3,453.18 1,671.92

(d) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 78.00 30.50

(e) Letters of Credit opened with the Bankers 8.85 13.88

(f) Legal suits filed against the Comapny

no monetary liability expected Unascertainable Unascertainable

2. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed

on Capital Account & not provided for (net of advances) 66.19 41.02

3. Future committed lease rentals 196.12 288.75

4. Remuneration paid or provided in accordance with Section 198

of the Companies Act, 1956 to the Managing Director

Salary and Allowances 40.80 40.80

Provident Fund Contribution 4.90 4.51

Perquisites 0.13 0.11

5. Previous year’s figures are regrouped, rearranged, or recast wherever necessary to conform to this year’s classification.

Figures in brackets pertain to previous year.

6. Share application money refundable is subject to reconciliation and is lying in a separate bank account.

7. (a) Debtors include Rs./Lacs Nil (44.52) and Advances include Rs./Lacs 380.37 (279.37) due from Private

Limited Companies in which Directors are interested as Directors.

(b) Advances includes Rs./Lacs 1058.18 due from parties for which recovery suits are filed by the Company.

However in the opinion of the Board of Directors these advances are fully recoverable.

8. i) As per the opinion of the Tax Consultants, the Company continues to make provision for taxation based on

it’s entitlement of deduction under Section 80HHC of the Income Tax Act, 1961, on income from export of

films, television programmes, etc. The Company’s claim is not accepted by Income Tax assessing officer for

the years so far assessed, is disputed by the Company in appeals and is shown as disputed demand under

contingent liabilities not provided for. Had this deduction not been considered, the provision for taxation
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for the year would have been higher by Rs./Lacs 888.89 (889.00) and profit after tax and reserves ( effect

of all earlier years) for the year would have been lower by Rs./Lacs 888.89 (889.00) and Rs./Lacs 6473.18

(5185.03) respectively and Liabilities would have been higher by Rs./Lacs 6473.18 ( 5185.03).

ii) Based on the legal opinion, the erstwhile subsidiary company Ambience Space Sellers Limited had provided

for Taxation for the year ended 31st March, 1997 considering the deduction u/s 80-O of the Income Tax

Act, 1961 for commission on advertisement income on gross basis. The Auditors had issued qualified

opinion for short fall in provision for taxation. The Reserves are overstated and Liabilities are understated to

the extent of Rs./Lacs 484.76 (562.00). However, the deduction u/s 80-O is allowed on net basis by first

Appellate Authorities for the Assessment Year 1995-96.

9. The Company has allotted 7,46,880 option warrants, convertible into one equity share each at Rs. 212 per share

to Zee Network Employees‘ Welfare Trust to be granted to employees of the Company and of associate companies

under Employees Stock Option Plan, 1998. The Trust has granted 4,57,400 warrants to employees upto

31st March, 1999.

10. Remuneration to the Auditors is as under :

1998-99 1997-98

i) Audit Fees 6.35 5.25

ii) Tax Audit Fees 1.00 0.75

iii) For Other Matters 1.57 2.35

11. (a) Debit and credit balances are subject to confirmation by the respective parties.

(b) In the opinion of the Board, the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are approximately of the value stated,

if realised in the ordinary course of business.

12. Additional information required to be given pursuant to Part II of Schedule VI to the Companies Act,1956 is as
follows :

(i) The Company is in the business of producing television programmes which is not subject to any licence.
Hence licensed capacity is not given. Further the nature of business of the Company is such that the
installed capacity is not quantifiable.

(ii) Production, Sales and Stocks

1998-99 1997-98

Qty. Value Qty. Value
(Nos.) (Rs./lacs) (Nos.) (Rs./lacs)

I. OPENING STOCK
Television Programmes

– Original 157 379.36 93 216.22
– Reexploitable 529.91 564.99

Films/Programme Rights 1455.24 1036.94
Audio Tapes 698316 68.58 1087875 118.71
Others 8.20 –

TOTAL 698473 2441.29 1087968 1936.86

II. PRODUCTION/ACQUISITION
Television Programmes

– Original 9504 4892
Films/Programme Rights 2597.32 2163.38
Audio Tapes* 1129186 127.41 2148764 205.99

* Including production Nil (119050) Nos. and after adjustment of shortages
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1998-99 1997-98

Qty. Value Qty. Value
(Nos.) (Rs./lacs) (Nos.) (Rs./lacs)

III. SALES

Television Programmes
– Original 9569 11964.26 4828 8246.36
– Reexploited 1656.86 1453.25

Films / Programme Rights
– Original 2460.11 1797.39
– Reexploited 93.50 78.26

Audio Tapes 1089929 257.64 2538323 553.09
Others 701.07 423.57

TOTAL 1099498 17133.44 2543151 12551.92

IV. CLOSING STOCK

Television Programmes
– Original 92 282.14 157 379.36
– Reexploitable 653.94 529.91

Films / Programme Rights 1981.55 1455.24
Audio Tapes 737573 70.66 698316 68.58
Others 29.19 8.20

TOTAL 737665 3017.48 698473 2441.29

Quantitative details of Films/Programme Rights (Audio,Video,etc) are not given as the Company acquires multiple
rights of programming partially/singularly in different ways. Hence, quantity details are not determinable.

(iii) Consumption of raw materials

1998-99 1997-98

Qty. Value Qty. Value
(Nos.) (Rs./lacs) (Nos.) (Rs./lacs)

Raw Tapes 35189 353.54 23882 212.13
Others 17.27 104.05

Total 370.81 316.18

(iv) Value of imported and indigenous raw materials consumed

1998-99 1997-98
% Rs./lacs % Rs./lacs

a) Imported 0.05 0.20 2.00 6.32
b) Indigenous 99.95 370.61 98.00 309.86

100.00 370.81 100.00 316.18
(v) Earnings in foreign exchange Rs./Lacs Rs./Lacs

(a) FOB value of exports 15180.54 10467.14
(b) Others 6.92 54.59

(vi) Remittances in Foreign Currency
Dividend remitted 16.29 16.41
No. of Shareholders 1079 1253
No. of Equity Shares held 296100 364700

(vii) Expenditure in Foreign Currency
Travelling 35.64 37.37
Others 117.97 54.67

(viii) CIF Value of imports
Capital Equipments 259.91 26.73
Raw Materials 0.20 5.75
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13. BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY’S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE :

I. REGISTRATION DETAILS

Registration No. State Code

Balance Sheet Date
Date Month Year

II. CAPITAL RAISED DURING THE YEAR (AMOUNT RS. IN THOUSANDS)
Public Issue Rights Issue

Bonus Issue Preferential Allotment

III. POSITION OF MOBILISATION AND DEPLOYMENT OF FUNDS
(AMOUNT RS. IN THOUSANDS)
Total Liabilities Total Assets

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Paid-up Capital Reserves and Surplus

Shares Application Money

Secured Loans Unsecured Loans

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Net Fixed Assets Investments

Net Current Assets Miscellaneous Expenditure

Accumulated Losses

IV. PERFORMANCE OF COMPANY (AMOUNT RS. IN THOUSANDS)
Turnover* Total Expenditure

(* includes other income)
+ – Profit/(Loss) Before Tax Profit/(Loss) After Tax

Earnings Per Share (Rs.) Dividend Rate (%)

V. GENERIC NAMES OF PRINCIPAL PRODUCTS OF THE COMPANY
(AS PER MONETARY TERMS)
Item Code No. (ITC Code)

Product Description

R E C O R D E D V I D E O C A S S E T T E S

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For M.G. BHANDARI & CO.
Chartered Accountants Vijay Jindal Managing Director
M.G. Bhandari, Partner Ashok Kurien Director
Place : Mumbai Vikas Gupta Company Secretary
Date : 20th May, 1999
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(Rs. in Lacs)

1999 1998

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before taxation, and extraordinary items 8,069 5,858
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 184 152
Deferred revenue expenses — 16
Share issue expenses w/off 31 31
(Profit)/Loss on sale of fixed assets 10 6
(Profit)/Loss on sale of investments (10) —
Interest paid 341 213
Dividend received (12) (11)
Interest received (404) (311)
Prior period Adjustment (Net) — 3

Operating profit before working capital changes 8,209 5,957
Adjustments for :
Increase in trade and other receivables (4,058) (2,590)
Increase in inventories (1,002) (468)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables (2,057) 719

Cash Generated from operations 1,092 3,618
Direct taxes paid (2,706) (1,643)

Net Cash flow from Operating Activities (1,614) 1,975

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets (658) (329)
Purchase of investments (928) (1,618)
Dividend received 12 11
Sale of investments 28 —
Sale of fixed assets 6 23
Interest income 404 311

Net Cash flow from Investing Activities (1,136) (1,602)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid (1,142) (978)
Interest paid (341) (213)
Proceeds from issuance of share capital — 300
Redemption of preference shares (300) —
Share application money received 16 —
Calls in arrears received 1 20
Proceeds from borrowings 1,378 939
Share issue expenses — (11)

Net Cash flow from Financing Activities (388) 57

Net Cash Flow during the year (A+B+C) (3,138) 430
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,931 4,501

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 1,793 4,931

Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ending 31st March,
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Notes to the Cash Flow Statement for the year ending 31st March,1999

1. Proceeds from borrowings are shown net of repayments.
2. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped, recast wherever necessary.

For and on behalf of the Board

Vijay Jindal Managing Director

Ashok Kurien Director

Vikas Gupta Company Secretary

Mumbai
Date : 20th May, 1999

AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE

We have examined the above Cash Flow Statement of Zee Telefilms Limited for the year ending 31st March, 1999. The
Statement has been prepared by the Company in accordance with the requirements of listing agreement clause 32 with
Bombay Stock Exchange and is based on and is in agreement with the corresponding Profit and Loss Account and Balance
Sheet of the Company covered by our report dated 20th May, 1999 to the members of the Company.

For M.G. Bhandari & Co.
Chartered Accountants

M.G. Bhandari
Mumbai Partner
Date : 20th May, 1999
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(In US Dollars, except share)

 1999  1998

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  4,254,509  12,555,437
Accounts receivable, net of allowances  23,404,485  18,908,098
Inventories  8,501,092  6,570,945
Other current assets  20,616,089  16,605,067

Total Current Assets 56,776,175  54,639,547

Property, plant and equipment - net  7,553,156  6,993,863
Investments 14,986,070  13,217,188

Total Assets  79,315,401  74,850,598

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt  1,618,011  1,905,984
Accounts payable  5,569,910  5,112,452
Other liabilities  28,341,220  30,297,250

Total Current Liabilities  35,529,141  37,315,686

Long term debt  2,681,277  1,491,698
Deferred income taxes  608,388  466,387

Total Liabilities  38,818,806  39,273,771

Stockholders’ Equity
Preference Stock of $ 2.55 Par,13% Cumulative, Redeemable
 Authorized Shares 25,00,000
 Issued and Outstanding 3,00,000 shares  —  763,942
Common Stock, $ 0.25 Par
 Authorized Shares 5,00,00,000
 Issued and Outstanding 1,86,72,000 shares  5,242,611  5,242,208
Share Application Money  37,731 —
Additional Paid-in-Capital  4,231,902  4,231,095
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income  1,552,172  1,045,456
Cumulative Translation Adjustment  (5,679,067)  (3,273,256)
Retained Earnings  35,111,246  27,567,382

Total Stockholders’ Equity  40,496,595  35,576,827

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity  79,315,401  74,850,598

(See accompanying notes to financial statements)
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 1999  1998

REVENUES

Net Revenue  53,967,168  46,812,608

Non Operating Revenue  1,326,605  1,945,518

Total Revenues  55,293,773  48,758,126

COST AND EXPENSES

Cost of Revenue  25,183,178  21,058,612

 Selling,General and Administrative Expenses  8,228,132  9,567,171

 Depreciation Expense  500,525  319,816

 Interest Expense  1,977,309  1,799,460

Total Cost and Expenses  35,889,144  32,745,059

Income from Continuing Operations  19,404,629  16,013,067

Less: Provision for Income Tax  8,914,961  6,929,779

Less: Deferred Income Tax  196,195  91,894

Net Income before Accounting Changes  10,293,473  8,991,394

Add: Cumulative effect of Changes in Accounting Principles  —  240,092

Net Income  10,293,473  9,231,486

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other Comprehensive Income (Unrealized holding gain) 509,497  1,052,916

Comprehensive Income  10,802,970  10,284,402

Weighted Common Stock Outstanding  18,672,000  18,672,000

Per Share Data

Earnings before Accounting Changes  0.55  0.48

Cumulative effect of Changes in Accounting Principle —  0.01

Net Earnings per Share  0.55  0.49

Fully Diluted Earnings per Share  0.55  0.49

Dividend declared per Share  0.13  0.12

(See accompanying notes to financial statements)
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(In US Dollars, except share)

1999 1998

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income 10,293,473 9,231,486
Add/(Deduct) non-cash items

Depreciation 500,525 319,816
 (Gain)/Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment 23,730 15,279
 (Gain)/Loss on sale of investments (23,730) —

Changes in Assets and Liabilities
 Accounts Receivable (4,496,387) (4,656,510)
 Inventories (1,930,147) (635,823)
 Other Current Assets (4,011,022) 2,475,320
 Accounts Payable 457,458 (1,119,860)
 Deferred Income Taxes 142,001 113,165
 Other Liabilities 4,465,422 6,383,278

Other Items
 Payment of interest 809,207 542,399
 Receipt of dividend (28,477) (28,011)
 Receipt of interest (958,709) (791,953)
 Payment of direct taxes (6,421,452) (4,183,855)
 Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principle — (226,636)
 Prior Period Adjustment (Net) — (1,705,094)

Net Cash provided by/(used in) Operating Activities (A) (1,178,108) 5,733,001

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant & equipment (1,097,787) (333,945)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 14,238 58,569
Increase in investments (1,304,880) (3,229,080)
Proceeds from sale of investments 66,445 —
Receipt of dividend 28,477 28,011
Receipt of interest 958,709 791,953

Net Cash provided by/(used in) Investing Activities (B) (1,334,798) (2,684,492)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payment of cash dividends (2,749,608) (2,490,792)
Proceeds from issuance of share capital 403 17,341
Issue/(Redemption) of preference shares (763,942) 763,942
Share Application Money received 37,731 —
Calls in arrears received 807 6,303
Payment of interest (809,207) (542,399)
Proceeds from borrowings

Short Term (287,973) 1,324,697
Long Term 1,189,578 1,452,081

Net Cash provided by/(used in) Financing Activities (C) (3,382,211) 531,173

Net Cash Flow during the year (A+B+C) (5,895,117) 3,579,682
Effect of Translation difference (2,405,811) (3,273,256)
Effect of Translation difference due to amalgamation — (397,098)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 12,555,437 12,646,109

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 4,254,509 12,555,437

Statem
en

t o
f C

ash
 Flo

w
s

 fo
r th

e Year E
n

d
in

g
 M

arch
 3

1
,



17th Annual Report 1998-99

80
ZEE TELEFILMS LIMITED

1. Accounting year
The accounting year starts at April 1 and ends at March 31.

2. Restatement of Financial Statements
The original accounts are maintained on historical cost convention and on accrual basis of accounting. The financial

statements are prepared as per the accounting practices prevalent in India and the Accounting Standards and Statements

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These financial statements are restated in substantial compliance

with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles of United States of America.

3. Foreign Currency Translation
The reporting currency of the Company is Indian rupees. For the purpose of preparation of the financial statements as

per US GAAP, items of the balance sheet and the profit and loss account are translated into US dollars according to the

Current Rate Method. While the assets and the liabilities are translated at the year-end exchange rates, the revenue and

expenditure items are translated at the yearly average exchange rates. The stockholders’ equity is translated at the

exchange rates prevalent at the end of the respective years in which the stocks were issued and accretions took place

to the retained earnings. The difference arising on account of translation is shown as “Cumulative Translation Adjustments”

in the statement of stockholders’ equity.

4. Use of Estimates, assumptions and classifications
Preparing financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts

of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Examples of such estimates include estimates of realizable value of finished

goods and allowance for doubtful debts. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Certain items in the financial

statements have been reclassified for better presentation.

5. Revenue Recognition
The Company derives its revenues primarily from sale of television programme software, audio tapes, education courses/

study materials and advertisement commission. Sale of television programme software and audio tapes are recognized

on dispatch of goods to customers. Course fees are recognized over the period of instruction. Advertisement commission

is recognized when related advertisement or commercial is telecast before the public.

6. Inventories
Inventories of raw stock and television programmes under production are valued at cost. Inventories of completed

television programmes and programme rights (audio/video) are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Estimated

realizable value of television programmes is considered at 10% of cost, once the programme is exploited and is further

available for re-exploitation, and considered at NIL cost if it is not re-exploitable.

7. Cash and Cash Equivalents
The cash and cash equivalents consist of physical cash in hand and cash available in the current accounts and deposits

with banks. The deposits with banks include monies deposited on account of margin money. The details of cash and

cash equivalents are given hereunder:

1999 1998

US $ US $

Cash in Hand 71,025 52,814

Cash at Bank 3,144,969 9,634,785

Deposits at Bank 567,750 2,779,323

Remittance in Transit 470,764 88,515

Total 4,254,509 12,555,437
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8. Accounts Receivable
`The age-wise break-up of accounts receivable is given below :

Period in days 1999 1998

US $ % US $ %

0-30 8,380,850 35.81 10,201,350 53.95

31-60 3,809,895 16.28 2,138,706 11.31

61-90 2,314,191 9.89 1,362,159 7.20

> 90 8,899,549 38.02 5,205,883 27.54

23,404,485 100.00 18,908,098 100.00

Accounts receivable as a percentage of net revenue for 1999 and 1998 amounts to 43.37% and 40.39% respectively.

9. Property, Plant and Equipment

The break-up of property, plant and equipment (net) is given below.

1999 1998

US $ US $

Land 159,350 172,804

Buildings 2,557,167 2,719,302

Plant & Machinery 2,583,673 2,118,818

Office Equipment 1,364,594 1,093,023

Furniture & Fixtures 450,854 412,350

Vehicles 274,015 289,661

Capital Work-in-progress 163,503 187,904

7,553,156 6,993,863

Property, plant and equipment in the construction stage including capital advances, are shown under capital work-in-

progress.

10. Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided on the basis of straight-line method. The rates of depreciation are

arrived at on the basis of the useful life of the assets, as prescribed under Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956.

Depreciation on capital lease assets has been provided by estimating the useful life of such assets.

11. Investments

The appropriate classification of investment securities is determined by the management at the time of purchase, and

such classification is reviewed as of each balance sheet date. As at year-end 1999 and 1998, investment securities were

classified as available for sale and held-to-maturity.

Available for sale securities are carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses being reported as a component of

Other Comprehensive Income, which forms part of Stockholder’s Equity. Held-to-maturity securities are carried at cost.

Investments in affiliates, upto 50% of the voting interest, are accounted for using the cost method.

12. Long–Term Debts

Long-term debts consist of  fixed deposits from public and borrowings from financial institutions and banks. The amount

of long term debt repayable during the year 1999-2000 is shown under the caption “Current portion of long term

debt” in the Balance Sheet.

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts (Contd.)
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13. Leases
Leases are classified into operating or capital lease, based on the underlying characteristics of the lease. Capital leases are

accounted for as though the company had entered into an obligation and invested in an asset, resulting in the charge

to operations being the aggregate of depreciation on the asset and interest on the outstanding obligation. Adjustment

has been made for reversal of lease rental and the revenue charge of depreciation and interest for capital leases.

14. Accounts Payable
Accounts payable represents the amounts payable towards purchase of goods and services.

15. Other Current Liabilities
Other current liabilities include provision for Income Tax (net of advance tax and TDS), provision for gratuity, provision for

leave encashment, short-term loans from banks and financial institutions and non convertible debentures.

16. Income Taxes
The provision for income tax represents the income tax payable for the fiscal 1999 as per the Indian Income Tax law,

which includes any additional provisions necessitated due to additional income taxes assessed by the Indian Tax authorities.

These additional income taxes relate to disallowance of deductions, for various years. The matters are currently under

appeal.

17. Deferred Income Taxes
This represents the income tax liability which is deferred due to timing differences for the treatment of expenses and/or

income under Companies Act, 1956 and the Income Tax Act, 1961.

18. Contingent Liabilities

As at As at

31st March, 1999 31st March, 1998

US $ US $

Guarantees given for loans granted to

Other companies 1,186,521 2,546,473

Other guarantees 1,028,382 230,532

Claims against the Company not

Acknowledged as debts 185,097 77,667

Letters of credit opened with Bankers 21,001 35,345

19. Prior Period Items
Prior period items include income taxes, depreciation, cost of revenue and sundry expenses of earlier years.

20. Non-operating Income
Non-operating income for the year constitutes the profit on sale of investments, dividend income, interest income, rent

income and other miscellaneous income.

21. Geographical Segment Report

1999 1998

Net revenue US $ % US $ %

Hong Kong 45,510,427 84.33 37,986,987 81.15

United Kingdom 2,032,832 3.77 1,186,123 2.53

United States 426,247 0.79 — —

India 5,599,356 10.38 7,033,882 15.03

Rest of the World 398,306 0.73 605,616 1.29

53,967,168 100.00 46,812,608 100.00

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts (Contd.)
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts (Contd.)

22. Business Segment Reporting

1999 1998
Particulars US $ % US $ %

Programme Software 38,648,270 71.61 31,250,702 66.76
Space Selling Activities 12,150,609 22.52 11,514,768 24.60
Others 3,168,289 5.87 4,047,138 8.64

53,967,168 100.00 46,812,608 100.00

23. Identifiable Assets (Gross)*

1999 1998
Particulars US $ US $

Programme Software 5,415,175 4,685,151
Space Selling Activities 2,931,687 3,162,527
Others 514,794 487,338

8,861,656 8,335,016

* The assets are identifiable to particular segments but can be used interchangeably between segments.

24. Quarterly Financial Information (in US $)

Particulars Jun-98 Sept.-98 Dec.-98 Mar.-99 Total

Net Revenue 11,300,725 13,167,989 14,803,194 14,695,260 53,967,168
Operating Income (PBIT) 4,252,882 5,495,176 5,563,599 6,070,281 21,381,938
Net Income (PAT) 2,121,500 2,833,813 2,417,954 2,920,206 10,293,473
E.P.S. 0.11 0.15 0.13 0.16 0.55

Jun-97 Sept.-97 Dec.-97 Mar.-98 Total

Net Revenue 9,062,921 10,509,430 13,922,070 13,318,187 46,812,608
Operating Income (PBIT) 3,370,130 4,652,632 4,650,851 5,138,914 17,812,527
Net Income (PAT) 1,831,527 2,913,457 2,158,321 2,328,181 9,231,486
E.P.S. 0.10 0.16 0.11 0.12 0.49

25. Related Party Information

Particulars 1999 1998
US $ US $

Revenue
Rent Income 137,323 167,258
Equipment Hire Charges 330,063 594,712
Interest Income 698,922 362,040
Sale of Raw Tapes 5,464 2,134
Sale of Programme Rights 38,909,536 30,928,007
Commission on Advertisements 11,815,342 11,514,766
Sale of Investments 65,703 —

Expenses
Interest Paid 36,355 138,587
Hire Charges 57,266 132,122
Rent Paid 9,370 14,101
Advertisement Charges — 58,861
Purchase of Investments 35,336 —
Dues from Related Parties 24,785,685 7,806,360

Dues to Related Parties 79,282 381,066
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26. Common Stock

Voting
Each holder of common stock shall have one vote in respect of each share held by him or her in the records of the
Company for all matters submitted to a vote.

Dividends
Should the Company declare and pay dividends, such dividends will be paid in Indian rupees. Indian statutes mandate
that dividends be declared out of distributable profits only after the transfer of up to 10% of net income computed in
accordance with current regulations, to a general reserve.

Also, the remittance of dividends outside India is governed by Indian statutes on foreign exchange. Such dividend
payments are also subject to applicable withholding taxes.

Liquidation
In the event of any liquidation of the affairs of the Company, the holders of common stock shall be entitled to receive all
of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. Such amounts will be in
proportion to the number of shares of common stock held by the shareholders.

27. Stock Options
During fiscal 1998, the Company established an Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) which provides for the issuance of
746,880 warrants to eligible employees. The said warrants are issued to an employee welfare trust, which holds the
warrants and will transfer them to eligible employees from time to time. These warrants can be exercised by the trust
during fiscal 2000. As a result, there is no impact on the financial statements during fiscal 1999.

28. Year 2000
The Company has evaluated the Year 2000 impact with regard to its computer systems and does not foresee any
problem. However, adequate contingency plans have been formulated for meeting any exigencies. The financial impact
to enable compliance with Year 2000 is not likely to be material.

29. Litigation
The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen, in the ordinary course of its business. These
actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will not, in the opinion of the management, have a material effect
on the results of operations or the financial condition of the Company.

30. Reconciliation of profits as per US GAAP

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
(in US $) March 31, March 31,

1999 1998

Net Income as per US GAAP 10,293,473 9,231,486
Add :
1 Deferred taxation 196,195 91,894
2 Provision for disputed income tax 4,250,203 3,015,092
3 Assets taken on lease reclassified as capital lease fixed assets 5,345 26,566
Less :
1 Cumulative effects of changes in accounting principles — 224,676
2 Misc. expenditure written off 73,443 139,417
3 Prior period adjustments 84,324 205,724

Net Profit as per Indian GAAP 14,587,449 11,795,221

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts (Contd.)



17th Annual Report 1998-99

85
ZEE TELEFILMS LIMITED

With the increase in visibility of the Company within the investor community, Zee management has decided to move towards

global levels of transparency and disclosure. With this intention, the Company is providing voluntarily, the information as

required under Form 10-K filing requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission of the USA. The management

cautions the users that Zee is not registered with the SEC as on date, nor legally required to file Form 10-K and this is provided

for information purposes only.

U
n

ited
 States S.E

.C
.  Fo

rm
 1

0
-K

United States
Securities and Exchange Commission

Washington, DC 20549

(Mark One)

Annual Report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act, 1934

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999

Transition Report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act, 1934

For the Transition period from _______ to __________

Commissions file number -

Zee Telefilms Limited
(Exact name of registrant as specified in the charter)

State or other jurisdiction of incorporation

or organisation Maharashtra, India

IRS Employer Identification No. Not Applicable

Address of the principal executive office Continental Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant

Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018

Registrant’s telephone No. including area code 0091-22-4965609

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act Not applicable. The equity shares are registered with the

five stock exchanges in India.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act 1934, during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such
reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes No Not Applicable

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will
not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference
in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Yes No Not Applicable

The aggregate market value of the common stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of March 31, 1999 was $ 214.2 million.

The number of shares outstanding of the registrant’s common stock as of March 31, 1999 was 18,672,000.

✓

✓

✓

FORM 10 - K
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PART – I
Item 1: Business

1.1 General

Zee Telefilms Limited (hereafter referred to as “Zee” or “the Company”) was originally incorporated as Empire Holdings

Limited in the year 1982 at Bombay, in the state of Maharashtra, of the Republic of India. In 1992 the Company

decided to enter the business of entertainment software and the name was changed to Zee Telefilms Limited. It is the

largest listed media company of India which specializes in producing programming software for television and selling

advertising space on the Zee Network channels. The Company’s principal executive office is located at Continental

Building, 135, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai, Maharashtra, Republic of India, PIN- 400 018 and its telephone

number is (91-22)-496 5609.

Zee made its Initial Public Offering (IPO) in September 1993. The Company started providing the programming software

for the first Hindi Satellite TV channel in India. Since then, Zee has expanded its operations considerably. The Company

is the primary supplier of software to the Zee TV channel, Zee News and Zee Cinema. From providing television

software to selling ad space, from marketing music rights to providing education and from producing movies for

television to creating animation films, the Company has diversified into all aspects of information and entertainment

industry. The vision of Zee is to be the leading player in the fast changing media environment around the globe.

Till 1992, the Indian population had no option but to watch one single channel which was managed and run by the

Government. With the launch of Zee TV, India has seen the beginning of the entertainment revolution. Zee TV channel

was a runaway success, mainly because of the strength of programming provided by the Company. Zee Telefilms Ltd.

was able to understand the latent need of the viewers for quality entertainment and offer them newer genres of

programming. This ensured that Zee built up a powerhouse of media assets. Our journalists and artists create new

products every half-hour of the day. This continuously enhances the world’s largest library of Hindi television programming

and this library becomes more valuable over time.

1.2 Zee Businesses

During fiscal 1999, Zee derived 60% of its revenues from export of original programming software, 7% from re-sale of

software from the library, 23% from the commission on advertising procured for the Zee Network channels, 9% from

local sales and the rest from other sales and services.

1.2.1 Export of Original Programmes

Zee TV was the first Hindi Satellite channel launched over the Indian skies. This channel was uplinked from Hong Kong

by Asia Today Limited (ATL). The Company had entered into an agreement with ATL to be the sole supplier of

programming software on the channel. At present, the Company is supplying programming software for three channels

of the Zee Network – Zee TV, Zee Cinema and Zee News. These programmes export accounted for 60% of the

revenues during fiscal 1999 as against 52% during fiscal 1998. The programme sale is made at a fixed price contract

of cost plus 15%. Programme procurement and development forms a crucial part of Zee’s business and includes

sitcoms, soaps, game shows, chat shows, news and current affairs, movies and miscellaneous educational and

entertainment programmes. The sale price of each half-hour programme varies from $ 5,000 to $ 12,000.

1.2.2 Commission Income

The Company is also the sole canvassing agent for booking and selling advertisement slots throughout India, for the

three channels. As per the agreement with ATL, Zee gets a commission of 15% for ad sales on Zee TV Channel, and

8.5% for ad sales on Zee News and Zee Cinema. The Company also earns commission from an Indian company on

local services offered in India. During  fiscal 1999, commission income accounted for 23% of revenues.
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1.2.3 Re-sale of Software from the Library

As per the Company’s accounting policy, the programmes that are not re-exploitable (for e.g. news & current

affairs etc.), are fully written-off after the first sale. For programmes that are re-exploitable, the Company charges

90% of the cost to the profit and loss account during the first sale and the balance is written-off during the

subsequent sale. There is strong demand for quality Hindi television software from other parts of the world and

Zee re-sells the software from its library. Since the cost has been substantially written-off, the revenues from resale

have much higher margins. This accounted for 7% of the Company’s revenues during  fiscal 1999.

1.2.4 Local Sales

Apart from exports and commission income, Zee also has music division (Zee Music), education division (Zee Education),

animation division (ZICA) and studio and equipment hire charges. These division accounts for the local sales of the

Company.

1.2.5 New Businesses

Apart from the existing businesses described above, the Company is entering into new activities from the fiscal 2000.

The Government has allowed private satellite channels to uplink from India and Zee has decided to launch its own

channels. It has also started a sports division and is planning DTO services.

1.2.5.a Regional Channels

From October 1999, the Company is planning to launch three new regional language channels (in Punjabi, Marathi

and Bangla) under the Zee Network umbrella. All the regional channels would be played out and uplinked from the

newly created Zee Broadcasting Centre at Noida. The entire advertisement revenue generated on the regional

language channels would accrue to the Company and the Indian viewers will have newer options for entertainment

in regional languages.

1.2.5.b Direct-to-Operator (DTO) Project

Being the leader of the television and entertainment industry in India, the Company is committed to remain competitive

in all respects. Zee has decided to embrace digital technology, the latest in international standard of broadcasting.

Digital technology will enable us to send 6-7 channels on a single stream to the satellite resulting in tremendous saving

in transponder cost, and would offer the best audio and video quality to the viewers. In the first phase, a bouquet of 8-

10 digitally encrypted channels will be offered. The regional channels will also form a part of this bouquet.

For receiving these encrypted channels, the cable operators would need to have an Integrated Receiver Decoder

(IRD) device to decrypt the signals. We expect to seed at least 35,000-50,000 decoders in the first three years of

operation. The Company has tied up with Canal +, one of the best digital technology providers in Europe, for

Subscriber Authentication System (SAS) and Conditional Access Software (CAS). For Subscription Management System

(SMS), Zee is negotiating with leading companies like Mindport and Wizard.

The Company will make a concerted effort to tap the subscription market through the launch of its DTO service. At

present, subscription revenues generated from the cable industry are almost twice as big as the advertising revenues.

When Zee starts getting a portion of subscription revenues, it will become a major stream of our revenue profile in

the coming years.

1.2.5.c Sports

During the month of April 1999, Zee sponsored the Legends World Cup, a cricket match for veterans at Kathmandu

in Nepal. This was shown live on Zee TV channel and Zee News channel. The first event organised by this fledgling

division was a huge success in terms of the popularity and also managed to break even financially. Sports is expected

to provide major opportunities in the coming years.
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1.2.5.d Movie Production

From the ensuing fiscal 2000, the Company has ventured into production of Hindi movies for theatrical release. At

present, there is one movie under production titled ‘Gadar’, which will be released during the next calendar year.

Besides, the Company is also producing a full length animation movie titled ‘Bhagmati’. - ’A Queen of Fortune.

1.3 Segment Analysis

The segment analysis of revenue in terms of geographical area is provided on page 82 & 83 of this report.

1.4 Trademark

The Company is licensed user of the following trademarks – Zee Network, Zee TV, Zee Music, Zee Education, ZICA, Zee

News and Zee Cinema.

1.5 Marketing Network

For programme sales, the Company has an exclusive agreement with ATL hence there is no need to keep a marketing

network for the same. However, for procuring advertisement revenue for the channels, the Company’s sales offices are

located all over India. The sales headquarters is located at Mumbai, India. The branch sales offices in India are located

at Ahmedabad, Bangalore, Calcutta, Chennai, Delhi and Hyderabad. There are 221 people in sales and marketing.

Zee also has business representations in other countries like Bangladesh, U.A.E., Pakistan, Australia, Korea, Singapore,

Japan, Hong Kong and USA.

1.6 Joint Venture and Subsidiaries

1.6.1 Siticable Network Limited

Siticable Network Limited provides cable TV services all over the country and is India’s largest cable TV network. With

the launch of Zee TV channel, popularity of satellite television channels started increasing and there was an uncontrolled

proliferation of small cable operators. At that time, there was an acute need for a corporate player in the industry. To

provide better quality of services to the viewers, Zee and Star Network jointly promoted Siticable in 1994. Zee holds

50% stake in Siticable.

With approximately 8000 Km of cable plant, Siticable reaches more than 4.3 million subscribers in India and accounts

for more than 60% market share in the top six metros in India. It has presence in 43 cities directly and has access to 180

cities through franchisee. Siticable also runs a local cable channel – ‘Siti Channel’ and a premium Hindi movie channel

called ‘Siti Cinema’. It has cable rights of more than 1,000 quality movies. With the proposed launch of internet services

through cable, the distribution reach of Siticable will provide a crucial competitive strength.

Siticable has its head office in the state of Delhi, India, with its regional offices in Bangalore, Bhopal, Calcutta, Chandigarh,

Chennai, Hyderabad, Mumbai and Noida. Siticable is staffed with around 360 people.

1.6.2 Programme Asia Trading Company Pvt. Ltd. (PATCO)

Zee launched PATCO as a 50:50 joint venture with Star Network during 1995. PATCO has a fully owned subsidiary

called El Zee Television Pvt. Ltd., which manages the subscription revenues of Zee Cinema, the only pay channel in the

Zee Network.

1.7 Environmental Matters

Software development work and advertisement space selling work does not pollute the environment, and hence,

statutory regulations regarding pollution control are not applicable to Zee.
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1.8 Functional Groups within the Company

The Company has several profit centres. Each profit centre is headed by a Deputy CEO, who is fully empowered to run

the day-to-day functions of their respective business. The various profit centres and the Deputy CEOs are as follows

Profit Centres Areas Dy. CEO

Free-to-Air Zee TV & Zee News Mr. Satish Menon

Entertainment Zee Cinema, Music Asia, Film Prodn. Mr. Sainath Iyer

Zee Music, Awards and Events

Regional Channels Indian Language Channels Mr. Aravind Kumar

English Channels Movies & General Entertainment Ms. Madhavi Mutatkar

Distribution DTO/DTH/Cable/Siti Cinema Mr. Hari Goenka

Technological Backbone, Bandwidth & infrastructure Mr. Sikander Bhasin

Support for Uplink/Downlink (DTO/DTH/ Zee News)

The Company has been divided into various service functions that are responsible to each profit centre head in their respec-

tive area of operations. There are seven functional groups – Marketing and Sales, Programming, Finance and Legal, Systems

and Software Development & Support, Commercial, Human Resource Development and Corporate Communications.

1.8.1 Marketing and Sales Group

The marketing and sales group handles marketing, account management, sales and market research functions. In

pursuance of its strategy to expand existing relationship with advertisers and to attract new advertisers, the sales force

acts as the first line of interaction with the clients. The corporate marketing team meets the programming group on a

regular basis to ensure tailored products can be provided to clients based on their need to reach specific target audi-

ences. At present, there are 221 persons in this group.

1.8.2 Programming and Production Group

The programming team is responsible for ensuring the quality of programming on the channel. They interact with

independent producers and artistes to develop new ideas and programming genres to suit the changing needs of the

viewers. They are also responsible for monitoring the product of competitors to keep a tab on choice available to our

viewers. The production team includes in-house artistes and journalists. 287 key persons drive the programming and

production group.

1.8.3 Finance and Legal Group

The finance and legal group includes corporate strategy and finance, project planning, budgeting and MIS, accounts

and taxation and legal subgroups. This group is responsible for short and medium term planning for growth,

organisational development, corporate structuring and investor relations. It is engaged in making policies and proce-

dures in respect of items having financial and legal implications and ensuring adherence to various corporate and tax

laws applicable to the Company. Since media industry is affected by disputes on copyrights, this group has an impor-

tant role to play within the company to safeguard its Intellectual Property Rights. There are 69 persons in this group.

1.8.4 Systems & Software Development & Support Group

The systems and software group has an important role of providing and maintaining all hardware, software, and data

networks throughout the Company. They have installed networking/hardware infrastructure across all locations and

have been responsible for setting up of state-of art-real-time and any-time video contribution network from more than

15 locations across the country, for its news gathering operations.

The I.T. group has also developed customised software for broadcast management system, sales accounting, financial

accounting system and human resources management system, which has resulted in tremendous cost savings to the

Company. There are 22 persons working in this group.
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1.8.5 Commercial Group

The commercial group is responsible for all purchase decisions and for deciding on the film and software acquisition

matters. This group also provides support and facilities for all in-house productions. The primary responsibility is to ensure

that all goods and services are procured at optimal prices. The Company has 16 person in its commercial group.

1.8.6 Human Resources Group

The two major assets of Zee are its IPR and its human resource capital. The human resources development group is

responsible for identifying the manpower requirement of Zee and recruitment for the same. They are also responsible

for designing suitable compensation system for the employees of the Company and taking care of general administra-

tion. An important aspect of the group’s responsibility is to identify training needs of employees and devise suitable

executive development programmes. There are 19 persons in the group for ensuring smooth HRD policies.

1.8.7 Corporate Communications Group

The corporate communications group is responsible for all corporate and business communication needs of the Com-

pany. They have an important role of ensuring proper communication with the business constituents of the Company,

creating a positive image through press conferences. The Company has 8 persons in the group.

1.9 Customers

A significant portion of sales of the Company comes from Asia Today Limited (ATL), which is governed by a perpetual

programme supply agreement. Zee has exclusive rights to supply programmes for all channels broadcast by ATL.

During the last financial year, 84% of the revenues were from sales to ATL. The other customers include channels in UK,

USA, Africa and other parts of the world.

1.10 Competition

Zee Telefilms Limited is the largest provider of Hindi television software in the world. The major revenues come from sales

of software and commission on advertisements. The competition to Zee comes from similar software suppliers which are

supplying to competing channels like Doordarshan, Sony, Star Plus and Home TV. The programme quality is reflected in

the popularity ratings of individual programmes and Zee accounts for 35 of the top 50 programmes in any week.

Zee believes that creativity, understanding of viewers’ tastes, constant innovation and appropriate leveraging of tech-

nology will ensure that the Company will continue to succeed in a highly competitive market. The Company has been

a pioneer in all its products and in most of the markets and continues to provide wholesome family entertainment to

Asians across the globe.

1.11 Employees

Zee had 648 employees on its rolls as on March 31, 1999. Of these, 75 are part of the senior management with an average

age of 36 years, 111 belong to middle management with an average age of 32 years and the rest are in the junior

management cadre. In terms of qualification profile, Zee has 79 MBAs, 14 professionals with CA/ICWA/CS qualification, 15

engineering graduates, 115 media professionals with specialisation in advertising /mass communication /journalism and 45

post graduates. There are 169 females working in Zee, and the male : female ratio in the Company is 74:26.

Zee believes in continuous developments of its staff members through on-job-training and the focus is on multi-

disciplinary development. A flat organisational structure encourages cross-functional teams to work together. Human

capital is most important asset of the Company. Hence, Zee’s recruitment and compensation policies are aimed at

ensuring a long-term association with the employees. During the year, Zee has introduced the Employee Stock Option

Plan for all its key executives. The Company is confident of attracting and retaining the best talent available.
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Item 2: Properties

Zee has its registered office and corporate office located at Worli, in the heart of the city of Mumbai, Maharashtra. The

Corporate office, Marketing and Sales, Programming, Finance, HR, Internal Audit, Corporate Communications, Legal and

Commercial and Information Technology groups are based here. This office is taken on lease and occupies 13,495 square

feet space. Another office is located at Andheri in Mumbai, where the production team is based. This office is owned by

the Company and occupies 12,375 square feet.

Zee has a branch office in Delhi and a state-of-the-art studio facility in Noida. The Noida Studio facility is owned and

covers approx. 59,860 square feet of area. The 3,120 square feet office in Delhi is taken on lease and houses the Delhi

branch office.

The company has also taken on lease 4,000 square feet space in the Esselworld complex, which is used to house the

ZICA studios. This studio is used for training students in the art of animation and the premises are used for producing

the animation movies.

The other property occupied by the company includes approx. 7,000 sq. ft.of leased space. The total property space

occupied by the Company amounts to approximately 99,850 square feet.

Item 3: Legal Proceedings

The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen, in the ordinary course of its business.

These actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will not, in the opinion of the management, have a

material effect on the results of operations or the financial condition of the Company.

Item 4: Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

The necessary information is included in the notice for the Annual General Meeting.

PART – II

Item 5: Market for Registrant’s Common Stock and Related Stockholder Matters

The Company’s common stock is traded on the Mumbai, Delhi, Ahmedabad, Calcutta and National Stock Exchange. The

stock was first listed in September 1993 on the Bombay Stock Exchange. As of March 31, 1999, there were 6,561 shareholders

as per the records of the Company. This year, the Company paid cash dividends amounting to $ 2,680,721 to the shareholders.

The following table sets forth the low and high sale prices of the Company’s common stock in Bombay and National Stock

Exchange for the last eight quarters.

Quarter-wise high low share price during fiscal 1998 and fiscal 1999 (US $)

Quarter ending Quarter ending

Jun-97 Sep-97 Dec-97 Mar-98 Jun-98 Sep-98 Dec-98 Mar-99

Bombay Stock Exchange

High 3.71 3.69 3.44 6.95 13.47 17.18 16.38 24.14

Low 2.25 2.79 2.27 2.62 6.12 9.86 12.77 13.00

National Stock Exchange

High — — — — — 17.28 16.24 24.09

Low — — — — — 12.94 12.78 13.10

—  =  Not listed during that period
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Item 6: Selected Financial Data
Financial Highlights (in US $)

1998-99 1997-98

Revenues 53,967,168 46,812,608

Operating Income 19,404,629 16,013,067

Net Income 10,293,473 9,231,486

Earnings Per Share (Rs) 0.55 0.48

Total Assets 79,315,401 74,850,598

Long Term Debt 2,681,277 1,491,698

Stockholders’ equity 5,242,611 5,242,208

Item 7: Management Discussions & Analysis of Financial Condition and Result of Operations

In addition to historical information contained herein, the following discussion includes forward looking statements

which involve risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, risks inherent in the Company’s growth strategy,

acquisition plans, dependence on certain businesses, dependence on availability of qualified and trained manpower

and other factors discussed. The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Company’s

financial statements included herein and the notes thereto.

1. Overview

Zee Telefilms Limited is a media and entertainment company based in India, and is the exclusive software supplier for

the three channels of Zee Network, namely Zee TV, Zee News and Zee Cinema. It is the sole canvassing agent for

booking and selling advertisement slots throughout India, for these channels. The Company is also involved in education

services, marketing of music rights, production of movies, sports and event management. The Company was formed

in 1982. It had its IPO in 1993 and is currently listed at the Ahmedabad, Calcutta, Delhi, Mumbai and National Stock

Exchanges in India. From fiscal 1995 through fiscal 1999, total revenues increased from approximately $ 23,850,000

to $ 55,293,773, while the advertisement revenues procured on the channels increased from $ 47,433,000 to

$ 91,935,000. Zee employs around 650 people.

The Company’s revenues are generated principally from export of programming software to Asia Today Limited, Hong

Kong and from commission earned on the advertisement procured for the Zee Network channels. The revenues from

sale of programmes are recognized on dispatch of goods to customers. The commission on advertisements is recognized,

when the related advertisement is telecast on the channel.

During fiscal 1999, the Company derived 84% of its revenues from Hong Kong, 10% from India, 4% from United

Kingdom, 1% from United States of America and 1% from ROW. In terms of business segments, Zee derived 60% of its

revenues from export of original programming software, 23% from commission on advertising, 7% from re-sale of

software, 9% from local sales and the rest from other sales and services.

Cost of revenue consists, primarily of software production expenses. As per the Company’s accounting policy, the

programmes that are not re-exploitable (for e.g. news & current affairs), are fully written-off after the first sale. For

programmes that are re-exploitable, the Company charges 90% of the cost to the profit and loss account during the

first sale and the balance is written-off during the subsequent sale.
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Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of expenses relating to salary and other compensation,

travel, marketing, telecommunications, management, administration and rentals. The Company depreciates the fixed

assets at the rates arrived at on the basis of the useful life of the assets, as prescribed under Schedule XIV to the

Companies Act, 1956. Other income includes income from interest, rent, dividend income and income from sale of

“special import licenses”.

2. Result of Operations

2.1 Fiscal Year ended March 31, 1999 compared to fiscal year ended March 31, 1998

Revenue: Net revenue was $ 53,967,168 for fiscal 1999, representing an increase of 15.3% over revenue of

$ 46,812,608 for fiscal 1998. Revenue continued to increase in all segments of the Company’s services. Sale of programme

software formed a majority of Zee’s revenues, representing 71.5% of the net revenues in fiscal 1999, an increase of

23.5% over fiscal 1998. Commission from advertising contributed 22.5% to the revenues in fiscal 1999 as compared

to 24.6% in 1998.

Non-operating revenue was $ 1,326,605 for fiscal 1999 as compared to $ 1,945,518 for fiscal 1998. This decline in

other income was due to a decline in income from sale of SIL, which declined to $ 24,860 in fiscal 1999 from

$ 772,840 in fiscal 1998. Total revenue during fiscal 1999 amounted to $ 55,293,773, an increase of 13.4% over the

last year.

Cost of revenue: Cost of revenue was $ 25,183,178 for fiscal 1999, representing an increase of 19.6% over the cost

of revenue of $ 21,058,612 for fiscal 1998. The cost of revenue represented 45.5% and 43.2% of total revenues for

fiscal 1999 and 1998. This marginal increase in cost as a percentage of total revenue was attributable to a change in

business mix and a lower margin on the music division.

Selling, general and administrative expenses: SGA expenses were $ 8,228,132 for fiscal 1999, a decrease of

14.0% over the SGA expenses of $ 9,567,171 of fiscal 1998. Selling, general and administrative expenses were 14.9%

of total revenues during fiscal 1999 compared to 19.6% during the last year. The decrease in SGA expenses as a

percentage of revenues was a result of the company’s ability to increase revenues in 1999 without a proportionate

increase in management and administrative costs.

Depreciation and interest: Depreciation provided during fiscal 1999 was $ 500,525, an increase of 56.5% over the

depreciation of $ 319,816 for fiscal 1999. This was mainly due to addition of studio equipment in the fixed assets.

Interest expenses increased by 9.9% to $ 1,977,309 primarily due to the fresh loans taken during the year, which

added $ 357,910 to the interest outgo.

Income from operations: The income from operations before income tax was $ 19,404,629 for fiscal 1999, an

increase of 21.2% over the income of $ 16,013,067 for fiscal 1998. As a percentage of revenues, income from

operations before tax increased to 35.1% for fiscal 1999 from 32.8% for fiscal 1998.

Provision for Tax: The provision for income tax was $ 8,914,961 in fiscal 1999 as compared to $ 6,929,779 in fiscal

1998. The Company’s effective tax rate increased to 45.9% in fiscal 1999 as compared to 43.3% in fiscal 1998. The

effective tax rate increased on account of additional provision made under US GAAP, for demand raised by the income

tax authorities for earlier years, which amounted to $ 4,250,203 and $ 3,015,092 for fiscal 1999 and fiscal 1998

respectively. Excluding the demand for earlier years, the effective tax rate remained unchanged at 24%.
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Net Income: The net income (before accounting charges) of Zee was $ 10,293,473  during fiscal 1999, an increase

of 14.5% over $ 8,991,394 during fiscal 1998. As a percentage of total revenue, net income was 18.6% during the

year, marginally higher that 18.4% achieved during last year.

2.2 Liquidity and capital resources

The growth of the Company over the years has been financed largely from cash generated from operations and to a

lesser extent, from the proceeds of borrowings. In 1993, Zee raised approximately $ 7,872,000 in gross aggregate

proceeds from its initial public offering of equity shares on Indian stock exchanges. As of March 31 1999, the Company

had $ 4,254,509 in cash and cash equivalents, $ 21,247,034 in working capital and long term borrowings of $ 2,681,277.

The current ratio as on March 31, 1999 was 1.60 as against the current ratio of 1.46 as on March 31, 1998. During the

year, the Company did not face any problem due to non-availability of funds, hence servicing of the loans was on time.

Further, the creditors for goods and services were also paid on time.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $ (1,178,108) and $ 5,733,001 during fiscal 1999 and 1998 respectively.

Net cash provided by operations consisted primarily of net income offset by increase in accounts receivable and

inventories. Accounts receivable as a percentage of total revenue increased to 42.3% as on March 31, 1999, compared

to 38.8% on March 31, 1998. Further, the average days outstanding of accounts receivable has increased in the

31-60, 61-90 and greater than 90 day aging periods and decreased in the 0-30 day aging period. The Company

believes that this is a temporary phenomenon and that the situation would improve from October 1999. The

inventories have increased mainly due to acquisition of blockbuster movies by the Company, which were not

telecast till the year end.

During the year, the company has spent an amount of $ 1,097,787 towards purchase of fixed assets. Of this, a major

portion (47%) was towards purchase of studio equipment. The capital expenditure was financed mainly from the loans

taken from financial institutions as well as internal accruals.

2.3 Reconciliation between US GAAP and Indian GAAP

There are material differences between the financial statements prepared as per the Indian and the US GAAP. The

material differences arise due to provision for deferred taxes, and provision for disputed income tax. The independent

auditors of the Company under Indian GAAP have given a qualified opinion on the financial statements with regards

to the short provision for income tax, which is based on the deduction claimed by the Company and disputed by

income tax authorities.

Zee has claimed deduction u/s 80 HHC of the Income Tax Act, 1961, which allows deduction on profit from export

sales. The assessing officer has disallowed the Company’s claim and raised demand of $ 4,250,203 and $ 3,015,092

in fiscal 1999 and fiscal 1998 respectively for earlier years.

The company has taken opinion of senior tax consulates and based on their opinion, it continues to make provision for

taxation on its entitlement of deduction u/s 80 HHC of the I.T. Act. The Company has not accepted the demand of the

I.T. authorities and the matter is in appeal. The demand raised by the income tax authorities is shown as contingent

liabilities under Indian GAAP.
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Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars March 31, March 31,

(in US $) 1999 1998

Net Income as per US GAAP 10,293,473 9,231,486

Add:

1. Deferred taxation 196,195 91,894

2. Provision for disputed income tax 4,250,203 3,015,092

3. Assets taken on lease reclassified as capital lease fixed assets 5,345 26,566

Less:

1. Cumulative effects of changes in accounting principles — 224,676

2. Misc. expenditure written off 73,443 139,417

3. Prior period adjustments 84,324 205,724

Net Profit as per Indian GAAP 14,587,449 11,795,221

3. Outlook: Issues and Risks

3.1 Management of Growth

Zee has experienced significant growth in recent periods. The Company’s revenues in fiscal 1999 grew 15.3% over

fiscal 1998. Future growth at Zee will place significant demands on its management and other resources. Continued

growth increases the challenges involved in recruiting and retaining skilled personnel. The Company’s inability to

manage growth effectively could have a material adverse effect on the quality of its business prospects, and its result of

operations and financial condition.

3.2 Investment in new Businesses

As of March 31, 1999, the Company had budgeted for significant infrastructural expansion in the near future. Zee is

planning to launch regional channels to be uplinked from India, and is getting into production of movies for theatrical

release. The total investment in the new business would amount to approximately $ 28,476,507. If the Company is

unable to grow its businesses proportionately, the result of operations will be materially affected.

3.3 Competition

At present, the broadcasting industry targeting Indian footprint is dependent on advertising revenue as its primary

source of revenue. The advertising revenue accruing to a channel in turn depends on the popularity of the channel

among the viewers. In case the Company is unable to create programmes as per the viewers’ tastes, the viewers might

migrate to other channels. Competition includes international firms as well as national, regional and local firms. Many

of the Company’s competitors have significantly greater financial resources, and there is no assurance that the Company

will be able to compete successfully with such competitors.

3.4 Risk Associated with Possible Acquisitions

The Company is planning to acquire another media Company – Zee Multimedia Worldwide Limited (ZMWL), subject

to regulatory approvals and approval of the shareholders. ZMWL owns media businesses in USA, UK, Europe, Africa,

Middle East and Hong Kong. Acquisitions may involve a number of risks, including diversion of management’s attention,

unanticipated events or circumstances, some or all of which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s

result of operations.
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3.5 Regulatory Issues Impacting the Industry

The businesses of the Company, directly or indirectly, come under the purview of the information and broadcasting

ministry of the Government of India. The Government is proposing changes in the broadcasting bill, which could

affect some or all of the businesses of the Company.

Item 8: Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Balance Sheets as at March 31, 1999 and March 31, 1998

Page – 76

Income Statements for the two years ended March 31, 1999

Page – 77

Statement of Stockholders’ Equity as at March 31, 1999

Page – 78

Statement of Cash Flows for the two years ended March 31, 1999

Page – 79

Notes to Financial Statements

Page – 80

Item 9: Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosures

The original accounts have been prepared as per Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and audited by

M/s. M.G. Bhandari & Co., Chartered Accountants who are independent auditors of the company. The independent

auditor has given a qualified audit report on the financial statements with regard to the short provision for income

taxes, which are based on deductions claimed by the company and disputed by the Income Tax Department. The

financial statements prepared as per US GAAP include the provision for income taxes based on the demands raised by

the Income Tax department on the company.

The financial statements prepared as per US GAAP have not been audited by the auditors.

PART – III

Item 10: Directors and Executive Officers of the registrant

Sr. No. Name Age Designation

Directors

1 Mr. Subhash Chandra 47 Chairman

2 Mr. Vijay Jindal 42 Managing Director

3 Mr. Laxminarayan Goel 45 Director

4 Mr. Ashok Kurien 48 Director

5 Mr. Vasant Parekh 55 Director
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Sr. No. Name Age Designation

Executive Officers

6 Mr. Aravind Kumar 41 Dy. CEO – Regional Channels

7 Mr. Bharat Kumar Raut 46 Creative Dir. – Events & Strategic Comm.

8 Mr. B.R. Jaju 48 Executive President – Finance

9 Mr. D. K. Pandey 49 Sr. Vice President

10 Mr. Hitesh Vakil 38 Sr. Vice President – Finance

11 Mr. John Barno 41 D.G.M. – Personnel

12 Ms Kanta Advani 40 Vice President – Sales

13 Ms Madhavi Mutalkar 43 Dy. CEO – English Channels

14 Mr. M.B. Zaidi 44 Associate V.P. – Corporate Affairs

15 Ms Monica Dalton 39 Vice President – Sales

16 Mr. P.C. Lahiri 46 Vice President – Corporate Affairs

17 Mr. P.S. Parasuram 33 Associate V.P. – Programming

18 Mr. Partho Ghosh 45 Sr. Vice President – Sales

19 Mr. Prafulla Vaidya 41 Associate V.P. – Commercial

20 Mr. Ranjan Bakshi 42 Vice President – Corporate Communication

21 Mr. Sainath Iyer 44 Dy. CEO – Entertainment

22 Mr. Sanjay Gaikwad 34 G.M. – I.T. and Special Projects

23 Mr. Satish Menon 42 Dy. CEO – Free to Air Channels

24 Ms. Seema Gupta 34 G.M. – Production

25 Mr. Sikander Bhasin 44 Dy. CEO – Technology Support

26 Ms. Uma Ganesh 40 Head – Zee Education

27 Mr. Vikas Gupta 35 Company Secretary & D.G.M. (Finance)

Item 11: Executive Compensation

The cash compensation for the Managing Director was USD 109,353 and USD 122,624 for the fiscal years 1999 and

1998 respectively.

The Company does not have a compensation committee. The human resource group of the company, in consultation

with the concerned department heads, frames the compensation policy for the employees of the company. Current

practices of other companies in the industry in respect of compensation are also considered while framing the policy.
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Item 12: Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The transactions with the related parties are decided on principal to principal basis. Asia Today Limited (ATL) accounts

for a major portion of the related party transaction of the Company, as it is governed by a perpetual programme supply

agreement. The nature and fair value of transactions and the fair value of amount due to, and due from related parties

are shown under notes to accounts 25 (Page 83).

PART – IV

Item 13: Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules & Reports on Form 8-K

Not Applicable

Signatures

Zee Telefilms Limited has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly

authorised, in the city of Mumbai, state of Maharashtra, India on May 20, 1999.

For ZEE TELEFILMS LIMITED

Vijay Jindal Ashok Kurien
Managing Director Director
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The Most Important Asset

Zee believes that the two most important assets of the Company are - human capital and the intellectual property capital. The

intellectual capital is derived from our human resources and these two combined create investor capital. The employee skills

and creativity differentiates Zee from all its competitors.

Youthful organisation

Zee is a relatively young organisation, with only seven years of operations. The average age of employee in the organisation is

only 31 years. Of the 648 employees in March 1999, a significant 60% belonged to the age group of less than 30 years. The

media and entertainment business thrives on youth and creativity and our organisational age profile amply reflects that. The

Company is an equal opportunity employer with a good 26% of the people being females.

The employees are drawn from diverse academic backgrounds, and include people with specialized training in media related

fields like advertising and mass communications. Zee believes in continuous development of its staff members through on-job-

training and the focus is on multi-disciplinary development. The compensation and recruitment policies are aimed at ensuring

a long term association with the employees.
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Economic Valued Added Analysis - Zee Telefilms Ltd.

In line with Zee Telefilms’ mission of creating 'higher shareholder value', we have started evaluating every action / decision for
its impact on the economic profits of the enterprise.

Economic Value Added (EVA) is a measure of returns that a company generates in excess of the cost of capital provided by
shareholders and lenders.

We are happy to inform you that your company has been generating good economic profits in the last four years and ranks
among top few Indian companies with such a high EVA spread.

1 EVA = (ROCE-WACC) * CE

2 The Cost of Equity is the return expected by the investors to compensate them for the variability in returns caused by the
fluctuation in earnings and share prices.

Cost of equity = Risk Free Return equivalent to yield on long term Government Bonds (taken at 11.9%)

+

Market risk premium (taken at 9%) x Beta variant of the company (taken at 1.2)

3 Thus Zee's cost of equity during 1999 = 11.9% + 9% x 1.2 = 22.7%

Year to 31 March 1999 1998 1997 1996

A Average capital employed [B + C] (Rs mn) 2178.0 1651.3 1261.8 876.3

B Average debt (Rs mn) 508.6 394.6 294.7 149.5

C Average networth (Rs mn) 1669.4 1256.7 966.8 726.7

D Cost of equity (%) 22.7 23.3 23.3 23.3

E Cost of debt (pre-tax) (%) 14.0 14.0 14.0 14.0

F Cost of debt (post-tax) (%) 9.1 9.1 9.1 8.0

G Weightage of debt (%) 0.23 0.24 0.23 0.17

H Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) (%) 19.5 19.9 20.0 20.7

I After Tax Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) [O] (%) 30.5 29.0 30.7 36.1

J Economic Value Added [I - H] (%) 10.9 9.1 10.7 15.4

K Economic Value Added [A * J] (Rs mn) 238.2 150.0 134.9 135.2

After Tax ROCE Calculation

L PAT (Rs mn) 611.0 436.8 348.3 301.1

M Add  :  Interest net of tax (Rs mn) 52.4 41.8 38.7 15.4

N Net Operating Profit After Tax (NOPAT) (Rs mn) 663.4 478.7 387.0 316.5

O After Tax ROCE (NOPAT/ CE) (%) 30.5 29.0 30.7 36.1

Figures for 1997 & 1996 are unaudited net consolidated results (inclusive of the erstwhile ASSL).
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Enterprise value increased by more than 250% during fiscal 1999.

Enterprise Value (EV) is the sum of market capitalisation and the net debt of any company. It represents what value the market
puts, on the firms total capital. We have taken the closing price of the last trading day of each year for arriving at the market
capitalisation.

The ratio of Enterprise Value to Capital Employed (CE) shows the efficiency with which capital translates into market value.

The difference between Enterprise Value and Capital Employed is called the Market Value Added (MVA). MVA is the measure
of the value your company has created in excess of the resources already committed to the enterprise.

Year to 31 March 1999 1998 1997 1996

A Market price (Rs) 987 273 88 128

B Market capitalisation (Rs mn) 18,404 5,093 1,636 2,380

C Net cash /(debt) (Rs mn) (38) 67 118 212

D Enterprise value (EV) [B - C] (Rs mn) 18,442 5,027 1,518 2,168

E Average capital employed (CE) (Rs mn) 2,178 1,651 1,262 876

F Enterprise value / CE [D / E] (no. of times) 8.5 3.0 1.2 2.5

G Market Value Added (EV - CE) [D - E) (Rs mn) 16,264 3,375 257 1,292

Figures for 1997 and 1996 are unaudited net consolidated results (inclusive of the erstwhile ASSL).
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Zee management consistently cautions that the stock price performance shown in the graph above should not be considered
indicative of stock price performace in the future.

High & Low quotations of the company's shares on the Bombay Stock Exchange during the period April ‘98 to March ‘99.

Bombay Stock Exchange

Month Share Price No. of Shares Value of

High Low Deals traded (no.) Shares traded

(Rs mn)

April-98 492.5 257.8 8,121 4,326,600 1,658

May-98 567.8 378.3 18,286 9,737,500 4,865

June-98 539.0 289.5 22,352 14,018,200 5,794

July-98 598.0 415.5 39,326 19,594,050 9,837

August-98 609.0 517.5 45,471 36,868,000 13,197

September-98 723.8 542.3 72,613 43,125,450 27,818

October-98 680.8 587.8 52,215 30,790,350 19,615

November-98 690.3 592.3 31,432 18,790,900 12,184

December-98 648.8 538.3 50,400 31,679,300 18,772

January-99 692.3 579.3 46,407 29,275,400 18,700

February-99 715.0 548.0 34,779 19,165,900 11,933

March-99 1017.3 772.0 33,780 17,106,332 15,630
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(1) Date of Annual General Meeting Monday, 27th September 1999

(2) Venue and Time 4.00 p.m. at Nehru Centre

Dr. Annie Besant Rd., Opp. Shiv Sagar Estate

Worli, Mumbai - 400 018

(3) Registered Office Zee Telefilms Limited

Continental Building

135, Dr. Annie Besant Road

Worli, Mumbai - 400 018

(4) Listing Details The Company has paid the listing fees at all exchanges and has complied

with listing requirements.

Stock Exchanges where the The Stock Exchange, Mumbai The National Stock Exchange
stock is traded with their Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers Trade World, Senapati Bapat
respective addresses. Dalal Street, Mumbai - 1 Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai-13

The Ahmedabad Stock Exchange The Delhi Stock Exchange
Kamdhenu Complex, Opp. 3&4/4B Asaf Ali Road,
Sahajanand College, Panjara Pole New Delhi - 110 002.
Ahmedabad - 380 015

The Calcutta Stock Exchange
Lyons Range

Calcutta - 700 001.

(5) All communication for share transfer, Share Department

change of address, dividends, share 135, Continental Building

certificates etc. may be addressed to Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai 400 018

Tel : 492 8658, 496 4822

Fax: 492 6294

(6) Share Transfer System All share transfers in physical mode involving transfer of 1000 or less shares

per transferee,subject to correctness and completion of all documents,

received on Monday would be ready at Company's share department by

following Monday.

Bulk share transfers would normally be registered and returned within 15

days from the date of receipt, if the documents are clear in all respects.

(7) Depository System With effect from 15th April, 1999 electronic trading in equity shares of the

company has become mandatory. Any investor desirous of trading in

Company's equity shares must have equity shares in electronic form.

For any assistance in converting physical shares in electronic form, investors

may approach our share department.
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(8) Investor Services - Complaints received during the year

Nature of complaints 1998-99

Received Cleared Balance

1. Non-receipt of share certificates 25 15 10

2. Letters from Stock Exchanges, SEBI etc. 38 29 9

3. Non-receipt of dividend warrants 15 10 5

Total 78 54 24

The Company has attended to most of the investor's greivances/correspondence within a period of 15 days from the
date of receipt of the same during 1998-99. Balance complaints, are due to want of information from concerned parties.

(9) Distribution of shareholding as on March 31st, 1999

No. of Equity shares held No. of % of share- No. of % share-
shareholders holders shares holding

1-100 6,043 92.1% 1,076,769 5.8%

101-200 175 2.7% 349,618 1.9%

201-500 122 1.9% 302,118 1.6%

501-1,000 43 0.7% 77,809 0.4%

1001-3,000 39 0.6% 97,605 0.5%

3,001-5,000 15 0.2% 65,800 0.4%

5,000-10,000 25 0.4% 173,700 0.9%

Above 10,001 99 1.5% 16,528,581 88.5%

Total 6,561 100.0% 18,672,000 100.0%

(10) Categories of shareholders as on March 31st, 1999

March 31, 1999 September 30, 1998

% share- No. of shares % share- No. of shares
holding held holding held

1. Directors, relative and associates 50.5% 9,432,800 50.8% 9,476,450

2. Individuals 5.9% 1,099,103 6.1% 1,130,200

3. Domestic Companies 2.4% 451,732 1.9% 359,500

4. Mutual Funds and Banks 10.8% 2,014,198 10.4% 1,946,350

5. FIIs and OCBs 28.1% 5,250,467 28.0% 5,234,700

6. NRI 2.3% 423,700 2.8% 524,800

Total 100.0% 18,672,000 100.0% 18,672,000

(11) Number of shareholders 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994

6,561 10,901 12,515 13,667 15,141 18,817



(12) Financial Calendar

1st Extra Ordinary General Meeting April 29th 1998

2nd Extra Ordinary General Meeting June 23rd 1998

3rd Extra Ordinary General Meeting March 26th 1999

Last Annual General Meeting December 17th, 1998

Last Quarterly Results June 30th, 1999

Approval of Audited Results (1998-99) May 20th, 1999

Annual General Meeting September 27th, 1999

Record Date September 25th, 1999

Book Closure Dates September 20th to 25th, 1999 (Inclusive of both days)

(13) Board meetings of the company during 1998-99 were held on 2nd April, 29th April, 27th May, 15th June,

27th July, 28th July, 12th October, 6th November, 7th November, 9th November, 25th November,
4th December, 13th January, 15th February, 22nd February and 16th March.

Total No. of meetings during 1998-99 16

(14) Complaints must be addressed to Mr. Vikas Gupta

Company Secretary (at the registered office)

guptav@zeenetwork.com

(15) Any Queries with respect to the Mr. Atul Das

financial statements of the company Sr. Corporate Analyst (at the registered office)

should be addressed to dasa@zeenetwork.com

(16) Dividends The Company has declared dividend @30%, @35% and @45% for

the years 1994-95, 1995-96 and 1996-97 respectively and also interim

dividend @55% for the year 1997-98. Dividend Warrants were sent

to all shareholders within the stipulated time.

Any investor who has not yet received the Dividend for any of these

years, may approach us for issuance of duplicate Dividend Warrants.

(17) Reuters Code ZEE.BO (Bombay Stock Exchange)

ZEE.NS (National Stock Exchange)

(18) Bloomberg Code Z IN (Bombay Stock Exchange)

NZ IN (National Stock Exchange)
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Dematerialisation of Shares

In accordance with SEBI guidelines, trading in shares of Zee Telefilms Limited by all categories of investors will only be permitted

in dematerialised form, effectively from 15th April, 1999. For the benefit of our members, we have given below a brief note on

the Demat process.

The trading in dematerialised shares is possible only in those exchanges whose clearing houses are linked to the Depository. As

on date, nine stock exchanges in India are linked to the Depository. These are the exchanges at Bombay, Delhi, Bangalore,

Calcutta, Ludhiana, Madras, NSE, Interconnected Stock Exchange of India Ltd., and the OTCEI.

Steps involved in Dematting

For holding shares in the electronic form or for trading in them, every investor must have a Depository Account.

Investor can open an account with any one of the Depository Participants (DP) of National Securities Depository

Ltd. (NSDL), or Central Depository Services (I) Ltd. (CDSL) A DP is a market intermediary through whom NSDL  or

CDSL interacts with the investors.

If an investor wants to dematerialise the physical share certificates he has to take following steps.

• Fill a Dematerialisation Request Form (DRF) available with your participant.

• Submit your share certificates along with the above form (write "SURRENDERED FOR DEMATERIALISATION"

on face of the certificates).

• The DP in turn will send an electronic request through the depository to the registrar and physically send the

certificate along with DRF to the company/registrar.

• On receipt of the certificate and DRF the company/registrar will check the genuineness of the certificate and

after making certain entries in its records the company/registrar will confirm the electronic request received

from DP after which the account of the investor will be credited.

• Then the physical certificate will cancelled.

• In case investors want to convert electronic shares back to physical shares than they have to inform the DP

and has to fill Rematerialisation Request Form (RRF).

Trading in Electronic Form

• In case of sale of securities, instead of delivering physical share certificates and transfer form, the investor has

to give an authorisation in the prescribed form to his DP for debiting his Depository Account.

• In case of purchase of securities, the investor must inform his broker about depository account number and

the DP ID so that the electronic shares can be credited into the said account.

• After the pay-out date, the broker would give money to his client in respect of whom he has sold the shares

and would give credit for the relevant number of securities to the client's Depository Account in respect of

whom he has bought the securities.

Advantages of Dematting

The major advantage is that the entire process of collecting the share certificates along with transfer deeds,

sending the same to the company for registration and receiving the share certificates duly transferred is avoided,

and the buyer gets instant credit for the relevant number of shares in his depository account. Also the buyer/seller

of security is free from all disadvantages of dealing in shares in physical form like bad delivery, loss/multilation of

certificates, purchase of stolen shares, etc.

For any further clarification, kindly contact Mr. Vikas Gupta, Company Secretary and he shall be pleased to be of any assistance

to you.
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BANK PARTICULARS
In order to control pilferage of Dividend Warrants the Company proposes to print your Bank Particulars
on dividend warrants. You are therefore requested to furnish your particulars in the following form
and post the same to the Share Dept. at the earliest.

Book Post
To
Share Department
ZEE TELEFILMS LIMITED
135, Continental Building
Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli,
Mumbai 400 018.

Fold here

Name of the Sole/First holder : .......................................................................................

Folio Number : .......................................................................................

Name of the Bank : .......................................................................................

Branch Name & Address : .......................................................................................

.......................................................................................

.......................................................................................

Nature of the Account

S/B or C/A : ....................................... No. : .........................................

Signature of the Sole/First Holder ............................................
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